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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This report includes forward-looking staients. In particular, statements about our expenta beliefs, plans, objectives or
assumptions of future events or performance artagwd or incorporated by reference in this repdi. have based these forward-looking
statements on our current expectations about fitveats. While we believe these expectations @soreable, forward-looking statements are
inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, mafyhich are beyond our control. Our actual resuaify differ materially from those
suggested by these forward-looking statementsddous reasons, including those discussed in dpisrt under the heading “Risk Factors”
beginning at page 19. Given these risks and uringés, you are cautioned not to place undue rebam forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements included in this refyg made only as of the date hereof. We do notrtadd=and specifically decline any
obligation to update any of these statements puhdicly announce the results of any revisionsrty fmrward looking statements to reflect
future events or developments. When used in therteynless otherwise indicated, “we,” “our” ands"uefers to BioCryst Pharmaceuticals,
Inc.

Overview

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. a biotedbgy company that designs, optimizes and devetopsl drugs that block key enzymes
involved in cancer, cardiovascular diseases, autmine diseases, and viral infections. BioCryst iratgs the necessary disciplines of biolc
crystallography, medicinal chemistry and computedeling to effectively use structure-based druggeto discover and develop small
molecule pharmaceuticals.

Our lead product candidate, Fodosine ™, tiansition-state analog inhibitor of the targietyme purine nucleoside phosphorylase
(“PNP™). The compound is currently in a Phase fial for patients with T-cell leukemia and a condtion IV and oral Phase |
pharmacokinetic trial in healthy volunteers waserdgly completed. We are negotiating a special paltassessment (“SPA”) with the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) for a plannpd/otal Phase 1lb trial in relapsed or refractorgdll leukemia patients. Additionally,
Fodosine™ is currently being studied in a Phas@llwith an oral formulation in cutaneous T-cgiiiphoma (“CTCL"), a Phase Il trial in
chronic lymphocytic leukemia (“CLL") and a Phask tfial in B-cell acute lymphoblastic leukemia (*BLL"). Fodosine™ has been granted
Orphan Drug status by the FDA for three indicatidngell non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, including CTCL; Cland related leukemias including
T-cell prolymphocytic leukemia, adult T-cell leukiamand hairy cell leukemia; and for treatment eABL. Additionally the FDA has grante
“fast track” status to the development of Fodosin®Phe treatment of relapsed or refractory T-talkemia. In February 2006, we
announced an exclusive licensing agreement withdifimarma International Holdings Limited (“Mundiphaa”) to develop and
commercialize Fodosine™ in markets across Europi, &nd Australasia for use in oncology.

In August 2005, BioCryst initiated a Pddis study with its second-generation PNP inhihiBX-4208, to evaluate the safety,
tolerability and pharmacokinetics of multiple odaises of BCX-4208. In November 2005, we enterem antexclusive worldwide licensing
agreement with F.Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd and HoffmaarRoche Inc. (“Roche”) to develop and commerz&aBCX-4208 for the
prevention of acute rejection in transplantatiod &or the treatment of autoimmune diseases.

Additionally, BioCryst has re-initiatetirdical development of peramivir, an inhibitor offiuenza neuraminidase, with a focus on
intravenous and intramuscular delivery. Also, Big&ihas identified a clinical candidate, BCX-46ir8its hepatitis C polymerase inhibitor
program, and is advancing that compound througtlipreal testing with the goal of filing an invegéitional new drug application (“IND”)
and, if the IND becomes effective, commencing chihtrials in 2006.

BioCryst is a Delaware corporation orain founded in 1986. Our principal offices aredted at 2190 Parkway Lake Drive,
Birmingham, Alabama 35244, and our telephone nunsb@05) 444-4600. For more information about@iyst, please visit our website at
http://www.biocryst.com. The information on ourlygite is not incorporated into this Form 10-K.
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Our Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to use strudtased drug design technologies to develop innexasimall-molecule pharmaceuticals to treat a
variety of diseases and disorders. We focus oug dewelopment efforts on building potent, selecinfgbitors of enzymes associated with
targeted diseases. Enzymes are proteins that oaes@ble biological reactions necessary for tlogssion of the disease or disorder. The
specific enzymes on which we focus are called emztargets. We aim to design compounds that wiibihlan enzyme target by fitting the
active site of a particular enzyme. Inhibition meamterfering with the functioning of an enzymeget;, thereby stopping or slowing the
progression of the disease or disorder. The prat@f@ments of our strategy are:

. Select and License Promising Enzyme Targets for the Development of Small-Molecule Pharmaceuticals. We use our technical
expertise and network of academic and industryamstto evaluate and select promising enzyme tatgdicense for the development
of smal-molecule pharmaceuticals. We choose enzyme tatfystsneet as many of the following criteria as fiaes

- serve important functions in disease pathw
- have known animal or c-based models that would be indicative of resulfsuimans

- address large potential markets and significantatmmredical needs, including pursuing niche mankatsre the results have
potential application to broader markets and ne

- have multiple potential clinical applications; ¢
- offer rapid development and commercialization opynaties.

. Focuson High Value-Added Structure-Based Drug Design Technologies. We focus our drug discovery activities and expendi on
applications of structure-based drug design teagies to design and develop drug candidates. Stetotaised drug design is a proc
by which we design a drug candidate through detaitealysis of the enzyme target, which the druglickrte must inhibit in order to
stop the progression of the disease or disorderb®lieve that structure-based drug design is a goweol for efficient development
of small-molecule drug candidates that have therg@l to be safe, effective and relatively inexgiea to manufacture. Our structure-
based drug design technologies typically allowauddsign and synthesize multiple drug candidatsitiibit the same enzyme tarc
We believe this strategy can lead to broad patesteption and enhance the competitive advantagearafompounds

. Develop or License Inhibitorsthat are Promising Candidates for Commercialization. We test multiple compounds to identify those
that are most promising for clinical development Base our selection of promising development chatels on desirable product
characteristics, such as initial indications oksafind efficacy. We believe that this focusedtsgya allows us to eliminate
unpromising candidates from consideration soon#rowmi incurring substantial clinical costs. In galii, we select drug candidates on
the basis of their potential for relatively effintePhase | and Phase 1l clinical trials that regjfewer patients to initially indicate safety
and efficacy. We will consider, however, more coexptandidates with longer development cycles ibekeve that they offer
promising commercial opportunitie

An important element of our businesstsgig is to control fixed costs and overhead throemyhtracting and entering into license
agreements with other parties. We maintain a stiieathcorporate infrastructure that focuses onstiongest areas of expertise. By
contracting with other specialty organizations,ledieve that we can control costs, enable our deuglidates to reach the market more
quickly and reduce our business risk. Key elemehtair contracting strategy include:

. Entering I nto Relationships with Academic I nstitutions and Biotechnology Companies. Many academic institutions and
biotechnology companies perform extensive reseamnde molecular and structural biology of potdrdiaig development targets. By
entering into relationships with these institutiowe believe we can leverage this respective rebdarsignificantly reduce the time,
cost and risks involved in drug development. Oulaborative relationships with such organizatiorsyntead to the licensing of one or
more drug targets ¢



compounds. Upon licensing a drug target or prorgisimmpound from one of these institutions, thergiges from the institution
typically become working partners as members ofsturcture-based drug design teams. We believertaies us a more attractive
development partner to these scientists sincedhrycontinue to have some involvement in the camipdevelopment of the
program. In addition, we collaborate with outsid@erts in a number of areas, including crystallpbsa molecular modeling,
combinatorial chemistry, biology, pharmacology, @ogy, cardiology, immunology and infectious disssasThese collaborations
enable us to complement our internal capabilitiehout adding costly overhead. We believe thiststgp allows us to save valuable

time and expense, and further diversify and stigmgbur portfolio of drug candidates. An examplswdéh a collaborative relationship

is the arrangement that we have with Albert Eims@bllege of Medicine of Yeshiva University (“AECOMand Industrial Research
Limited (“IRL") who are the licensors of our PNP inhibitor progra

. Developing Drug Development Candidates or Licensing Them to Other Parties. We generally plan to advance drug candidates
through initial and/or early-stage drug developm€uwt larger disease indications requiring comgléxcal trials, our strategy is to
license drug candidates to pharmaceutical or biwtelogy partners for final development and globatketing. We believe

partnerships are a good source of development patgniEense fees, future event payments and liegalthey also reduce the costs

and risks, and increase the effectiveness, ofdiage product development, regulatory approval,ufgeturing and marketing. We
believe that focusing on discovery and early-stgeg development while benefiting from our parthersven development and

commercialization expertise will reduce our intdrergpenses and allow us to have a larger numberugf candidates progress to later
stages of drug development. However, after estahtisa lead product candidate, we are willing ¢tettise that candidate during any
stage of the development process we determine beheficial to the company and to the ultimate tgy@ent and commercialization

of that drug candidate. For some smaller nicheadiséndications markets, we may choose to develapufacture, and where
appropriate market and distribute any approvedsiougselves, such as Fodo:™ for certain T-cell and E-cell cancers in the U.!

Products in Development

The following table summari&isCryst's active development projects as of Fety @4, 2006:

Program and Candidate Disease
Category/Indication Delivery Form Development Stage Worldwide Rights

PNP Inhibitor (Fodosin™)

T-cell leukemig IV/Oral Phase ll¢ BioCryst/Mundipharmi
CLL Oral Phase |
B-ALL v Phase /11
CTCL Oral Phase
PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208) Oral Phase Roche/BioCryst has
Autoimmune disease promotion rights in thi
Transplantation rejectic U.S. in limited indication:
Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivir) v Phase BioCryst
Viral IM Preclinical
Hepatitis C Polymerase Inhibitors Oral Preclinical BioCryst
Viral
Tissue Factor/Factor Vlla Inhibitors Oral Lead Optimizatior BioCryst

Cardiovascular / Oncolog
PNP Inhibitors
T-cell Related Diseases

Overview The human immune system employs specialized, ¢edlisiding T-cells, to control infection by recagimg and attacking
disease-causing viruses, bacteria and parasitesllSTare an essential part of the body’s immurséesy that serve a dual purpose to both

orchestrate and participate in the body’s immuieaase. For the most part, this system works flssi§eto protect the body. However, when

T-cells multiply uncontrollably, T-cell proliferaté diseases, such as T-cell cancers, can occur.
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The link between T-cell proliferation and the perimucleoside phosphorylase, or PNP, enzyme waslifisovered approximately
twenty-five years ago when a patient, who was dealét deficient in PNP, exhibited limited T-celt@vity, but reasonably normal activity of
other immune functions. In other patients lackimd¢PPactivity, the T-cell population was selectivdigypleted; however, B-cell function tended
to be normal. Based on these findings and thetsestitell culture studies, inhibiting PNP appdarproduce selective suppression of T-cells
without significantly impairing the function of athcells.

Acute Lymphoblastic LeukemiBhe most common form of leukemia in childrendste lymphoblastic leukemia (“ALL"). According
to the American Cancer Society, 3,930 new casast(add children combined) will be diagnosed in thated States in 2006 (T-cell and B-
cell). ALL results from an acquired injury to theNB of a single cell in the bone marrow.

T-cell LymphomaLymphoma is a general term for a group of cantteasoriginate in the lymphatic system. About 5® & mericans
will be diagnosed with a non-Hodgkin's lymphoma2d06 and approximately 15% of these will be congdd -cell lymphomas. T-cell
lymphoma results when alymphocyte (a type of white blood cell) undergoenalignant change and begins to multiply, everjuaibwding
out healthy cells and creating tumors, which emdatg lymph nodes and invade other sites in thg.l@d@CL is a primary skin neoplasm and
accounts for nearly 50% of all T-cell malignancies.

T-cell Mediated Autoimmune DiseaSdwre are more than 80 clinically distinct autoinmawliseases such as psoriasis, rheumatoid
arthritis, multiple sclerosis, and Crohn’s diseageich appear to have activated T-cells as a nggarof their pathogenesis. These diseases
occur when the immune system attacks the body’saila rather than invading microorganisms. Thamfmhibition and/or elimination of
activated T-cells could have a beneficial effectiogse diseases.

Transplant Rejectionfhe greatest threat to transplant patients istiejeof the transplanted organ by the body’s owmime system.
For this reason, transplant recipients must takigsito suppress the immune response and preveatiogj usually for the rest of their lives
regimen combining several drugs is usually givet s treatment has to be continued indefinitEly kidney transplant recipients, rejection
of the new kidney by the patient’s immune systemlead to loss of the transplanted organ and arrétudialysis. For heart, lung and liver
transplant patients, loss of the transplanted opgasents an immediate threat to life.

Our PNP Inhibitor(s)

PNP Inhibition PNP is an enzyme that plays an important role-@ell proliferation, because it is necessary tomadn normal DNA
synthesis in human T-cells. Selective inhibitiorPOfP causes certain nucleosides, including deoxyagiae, to accumulate. As the
concentration of deoxyguanosine increases withaells, it is converted by specific enzymes to demanosine triphosphate. A high
concentration of deoxyguanosine triphosphate irllscauses an imbalance in the intra-cellulautriectide pool and thus causes cell death.

In June 2000, we licensed a series of potent PNBitors from AECOM and IRL. The lead drug candal&iom this collaboration,
Fodosine™js a more potent inhibitor of human lymphocyte feshtion than other previously known PNP inhibio€linical data in our pa
and ongoing clinical trials, plus extensive preiclih studies indicate that Fodosine™ can modulatelTactivities. Fodosine™ is an
investigational PNP inhibitor for the potentialdtment of T-cell leukemias and lymphomas.

During 2002, we exercised the option to add a nemvpound, BCX4208, to the series of inhibitors of PNP licenseanf AECOM anc
IRL. Preclinical results indicated that BCX-4208snaamore potent inhibitor than Fodosine™. We cotepla Phase | single ascending dose
clinical trial in healthy volunteers early in 208Bd have recently added two additional dosing regsio an ongoing Phase Ib multi-dose
clinical trial in healthy volunteers that was iatiéd in the third quarter of 2005. We licensed B4208 to Roche in November 2005 for the
world wide development and commercialization inoemmune diseases and transplant rejection.
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PNP Inhibitor (Fodosine™)
Overview

The first clinical trial with an intravenous fornation of Fodosine™, which began in 2002, was a ®hablnical trial that enrolled T-
cell ALL patients at the M.D. Anderson Cancer CeirteHouston, Texas. Simultaneously, there wereljmeal studies being conducted at
the M.D. Anderson Cancer Center which indicated Bualosine™ induces the same biochemical changesrious other types of leukemia
cells that are responsible for the inhibition ofeikemia cells. The results of these preclinicadiigs led us to expand beyond the single
starting trial in T-cell ALL by initiating additioal clinical trials for refractory patients with BEA, CTCL, and hematologic malignancies.
Based on the encouraging results of these initigiss, we have developed a strategy for the samatius development of Fodosine™ in
multiple indications using intravenous, oral andhbination dosing regimens.

Current Development Strategy (T-cell leukemia, B-ALL, CLL, and CTCL)

Fodosine™ Clinical Development for Aggiige T-cell MalignanciesDuring 2004, we initiated a Phase lla trial toodinpatients with
aggressive T-cell malignancies. Despite encouragisglts observed with other T-cell specific aggthts prognosis for patients with relapsed
or refractory leukemia or lymphoma is poor andtiremnt options remain limited. The goal of the Phieselinical trial is to determine the
therapeutic effect produced by Fodosine™ as iteslto the proposed mechanism of action in théitibn of proliferating T-lymphocytes in
patients with T-cell ALL. Through February 8, 20@6ere have been 37 patients enrolled in this, s@he of which were still in the initial 30
day treatment period. The results of this triabngl with a Phase | oral and IV pharmacokinetid tridealthy volunteers will assist in the fit
design of a planned Phase b pivotal trial.

Our strategy for future development is to continegotiating with the FDA to design the planned RHés clinical trial under an SPA,
which depending on the results, could serve agpithwal trial for the filing of a New Drug Applicein (“NDA”) in T-cell ALL. We have
obtained orphan drug status for Fodosine™ in meliipdications and the FDA has granted “fast tragtidtus to the development of
Fodosine™ for the treatment of relapsed or refrgctocell leukemia. Our current intent is to maiint significant rights in this program and
for BioCryst itself to potentially market and dibute Fodosine™ in the United States for treatnoért-cell cancers.

In 2004, we initiated a Phase | trial with an doamulation of Fodosine™ for treatment of patiewith CTCL. This Phase | trial
initially consisted of nine patients, includingélercohorts of patients at three different doseldete determine the safety and pharmacokit
profile of the oral formulation. This trial has eexpanded to add additional cohorts of differertinlg levels and to transition this trial into a
Phase I/l study to determine the efficacy of thial formulation and to establish the optimum ditee will be required for future clinical
trials in CTCL.

During the third quarter of 2005, we initiated aaBé |l trial with oral Fodosine™ in patients withICin an advanced stage and
refractory to fludarabine, which is the curreninstard of therapy. Conducted at the University ofd&eM.D. Anderson Cancer Center, this
single-site Phase Il, open label trial will evakittie efficacy and safety of Fodosine™ as detemilyeresponse rate, time to disease
progression, and patient tolerance. Patients wiive orally administered Fodosine™ at a dosé)6fradg for four weeks. After this first full
cycle of therapy, patients will be evaluated. Resjiog patients or patients with stable diseasehelallowed to receive further treatment
cycles up to a maximum of six cycles.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, we initiatedtzaBe I/l clinical trial of Fodosine™ to determitiee safety of repeat doses of an
intravenous (V) formulation of the drug in patientith B-ALL. This multi-center, open-label, repeaitise study is scheduled to enroll 30
patients and consists of two periods, an Initiafment Period and an Extended Treatment PeriadInitial Treatment Period will last four
weeks, during which patients will receive singléydanfusions of 80mg/m2 of Fodosine™ for five cegsitive days each week with at least
two non-treatment days per week. This regimen lvalextended by four additional weeks in the Extdnbieatment Period if the patient
continues to show benefit from the treatment. Addailly, patients who are responding to treatmeitht Wodosine™ at the end of the
Extended Treatment Period may continue receiviegitiug under compassionate use guidelines.
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During 2006, we plan to initiate an additional Rh#drial of Fodosine™ in CLL at multiple sitesthe U.S. and we plan to be in a
Phase Il trial in CTCL patients.

In February 2006, we and Mundipharma entered intexelusive license agreement to develop and cowgiatize Fodosine™, in
markets across Europe, Asia and Australasia foirusacology. The agreement covers a number of etsiik Asia and Australasia including
Japan, Australia, New Zealand, China and Indias €hilaboration should help maximize the globaledlegment, commercialization, and
market potential of Fodosine™ in a variety of sesionedical conditions potentially including T-delikemia, CTCL, CLL, T-cell non-
Hodgkin’s lymphoma and B-cell non-Hodgkin's lympham

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208)
Overview

We believe that the results to date from our Phasals of Fodosine™ support the principle thatibition of PNP has a direct effect
on proliferation of activated T-lymphocytes. Duritig fourth quarter of 2004, we began clinical depment of BCX-4208, a second-
generation PNP inhibitor, as a drug candidatetfertteatment of T-cell mediated autoimmune diseaselsiding psoriasis. Although BCX-
4208 and Fodosine™ are both investigational PNbitans, BCX-4208 differs from Fodosine™ in sige#int ways. For example, BCX208
is more potent, and has the ability to suppress fNPnger periods of time. Thus, BCX-4208 hasaptial advantages over Fodosine™ for
the treatment of diseases requiring long-term, misradministration of a PNP inhibitor.

Current Development Strategy

We completed a Phase | single dose pharmacokitmitién healthy volunteers early in 2005. Durirg third quarter of 2005, we
initiated a Phase Ib multi dose trial in healthyuweers to evaluate the safety, tolerability, phdrmacokinetics of multiple oral doses of
BCX-4208 with the goal of beginning a Phase llltdiaring 2006 in psoriasis patients.

In November 2005, we and Roche announced an exellisense agreement for the worldwide developraedtcommercialization of
BCX-4208 for the prevention of acute rejectionransplantation and for the treatment of autoimmiseases. This collaboration provided
substantial strategic and economic benefit to wlsadgo all the essential elements for the rapityprehensive and competitive development
of BCX-4208. The two companies have establishexird gommittee to set the clinical developmenttsgg and the future development
program for BCX-4208.

Neuraminidase Inhibitor

Influenza

Seasonal Influenz&easonal influenza, commonly known as the flu,vsa infection characterized by symptoms inclugfever,
cough, sore throat, fatigue, headache, and/oisciiicording to the U.S. Centers for Disease Coaind Prevention (“CDC”), an estimated
5% to 20% of the American population suffers frarfiienza annually, more than 200,000 people arpitadized from flu complications, ar
approximately 36,000 people die from flu. Influenggarticularly dangerous to the elderly, youngdrbn and people with certain health
conditions. Outbreaks of seasonal flu tend to Wlfredictable patterns usually occurring in theteinNew vaccines are developed annually
based on known flu strains and are usually availétn the annual flu season. There are also aalitrieatments available for the treatment of
people infected with influenza.

Avian InfluenzaAccording to information from the CDC, avian indinza, or bird flu is an infection caused by visugich occur
naturally among birds. This form of flu is very ¢agious among birds and can lead to serious illaedssometimes death. There are two |
forms of disease that infect domestic poultry, anew pathogenic form and the other a highly pagmigform. The latter form can cause
disease that affects multiple internal organs aitld &mortality rate between 90-100% in these bivithin 2 days.
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While there are many different subtypes of theuiafiza A virus, only three subtypes are known tolreently circulating among
humans. Avian influenza A viruses are found chi@iflpirds, but there have been confirmed casesfetiion in humans, generally as a result
of contact with infected birds. These infectionsdnbed to symptoms of normal flu to more severe lfadhreatening conditions. Influenza A
(“H5N1") is a subtype of an influenza virus thahighly contagious among birds and can be very lggadhem. Of the avian influenza
viruses that have crossed the species barrieféotihumans, the H5N1 has caused the largest nunfildetected cases of severe disease and
death in humans. Thus far, this virus has not k@ewn to spread from one person to another, birtfeenza A viruses constantly change,
they could mutate over time to have the abilitgpoead among humans.

Pandemic Influenz&Pandemic flu is a global disease outbreak thetirscwhen a new influenza virus emerges so thagilpdmve had
no previous exposure. This situation occurs verglyaand only occurred three times in the®@entury.

Flu Prevention and Treatmerthe development of effective therapeutics hafleinged medical researchers due to the seasonal
variation in viral strains and the highly infect®nature of influenza. Patients, therefore, hawééid treatment options. Amantadine and
rimantadine are used for treatment of influenzaufdre ineffective against influenza B. In additittese drugs cause some adverse side
effects, and the virus tends to develop resistémteese drugs. For the 2005-2006 flu season, @ Ras recommended against the use of
amantadine and rimantadine for the treatment gotpraxis of influenza in the United States duei¢ms of resistance.

Vaccines are available against the disease butlimitations: people require advance vaccinatiagomes are limited by their
specificity to particular strains of the virus; avatcines offer little protection if the vaccindngccurate. In addition, many people decline the
required injections because of fear and/or discomide ability of the virus to change its struettio avoid the body’s natural defenses is a
serious obstacle to developing an effective vacaganst influenza. Different strains can arise nvhgrface antigens on the virus (the portion
of the virus that causes an immune reaction in msnandergo minor genetic mutations each yearesiths replicates. Because of this
mutability, the immunity acquired in response tfeation by a particular strain of the virus doe$ pmvide adequate protection against
viruses that subsequently arise. The producticmmgw vaccine each year is not only complex an@érsige, but also an inefficient methoc
global disease control.

Inhibiting Influenza Neuraminidad®esearch during the past two decades has seentiraheances in understanding the molecular
structure and function of the influenza virus. ddagable attention has been focused on the enzymeminidase, which is located on the
surface of the virus. Neuraminidase assists indglease and spread of the flu virus by breakingt@nical strands that hold the new viruses
to the cell surface, allowing the replicated vitospread and infect other cells. This processressgs until the host’s immune response can
produce enough antibodies to bring the infectiodeurcontrol. Inhibiting the neuraminidase enzymepsenew viruses attached to the cell
surface, thereby preventing the spread of the \@ngsthe further infection of other cells. The sdigent quantities of virus in the bloodstre
are not enough to cause disease but are sufficientiuce the body to mount an immune response.

In addition to our neuraminidase inhibitor drug digiate, both Roche, in collaboration with GileadeBices, and GlaxoSmithKline
(“GSK”") have neuraminidase inhibitors. Roche’s rauinidase inhibitor is a twice-a-day, orally actieuraminidase inhibitor, while GSK'’s
neuraminidase inhibitor is administered by dry pewitihaler twice a day. Both drugs are approvedrfarketing in the United States and
other countries for treatment of influenza. Rosh@uraminidase inhibitor is also approved for pydgxis use for prevention of influenza.
addition to these companies with neuraminidasebitdrs, there are other companies working to dgvekiccines and other antiviral drugs to
be used against various strains of influenza.

Some studies in laboratories suggest that sonfeesétneuraminidase inhibitor drugs should workeattng avian influenza infections
in humans, but additional studies are needed t@dstrate the effectiveness of these drugs.
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Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivir)
Overview

Background In 1987, scientists at The University of Alabaat@irmingham (“UAB"), in collaboration with our sEmtists, began
determining the molecular structure of the infllemeuraminidase enzyme from several differentreraf influenza, using X-ray
crystallography. Subsequently, our scientists aA® dcientists developed numerous new inhibitorthege enzymes using structure-based
drug design. We licensed the influenza neuramigiglmegram from UAB in 1994 and proceeded to coreple¢ studies of the enzyme’s
molecular structure needed to advance the developofi@euraminidase inhibitors. The structure &f #ctive site of influenza neuraminidase
is similar among different viral strains. Becau$éhis similarity, we believe that our neuraminidashibitors may be effective in the
treatment and prevention of influenza, regardléshanges in the virus.

By 1998, four patented compounds emerged as viabbiuct development candidates. Preclinical studi#srmined the lead
compound, peramivir, has the following benefits:

. good safety profile

. inhibition of both influenza A and E

. effective when given by injection or at large dotsdeen orally;

. once-a-day dosage; ar

. can be made into a liquid form, allowing for orakwby the elderly and young childr

Previous Licensing Historyln September 1998, we entered a worldwide lieaggeement with The R.W. Johnson Pharmaceutical
Research Institute (“RWJPRI”) and Ortho-McNeil Rhaceutical Inc. (“Ortho-McNeil”) both Johnson & Jw@on companies, for
development and commercialization of our influenearaminidase inhibitors, including peramivir. Oprih30, 2001, we announced that
Ortho-McNeil and RWJPRI, gave four months prioric@bf termination of the worldwide license agreemeith us to develop and market
products to treat and prevent viral influenza. ®gently, all rights to peramivir returned to ustif@-McNeil indicated that this business
decision was not related to safety or efficacyefgmivir, but that other of its drug developmerdgrams were of a higher priority. The final
termination of this agreement was effective on Smybier 21, 2001.

Previous Clinical Development History

Phase Il data — SummayWJPRI conducted two Phase Il placebo-controlladdomized studies for the treatment of healthy
volunteers infected with a strain of either inflaarA or influenza B. The primary endpoints wereabiiters over time expressed as the area
under the viral titer curve. Among infected subjegeramivir produced a dose-dependent, anti-gffatt. In addition, oral, once daily
peramivir was well tolerated and reported advevamts were similar for the active and placebo-geajroups.

Phase Il clinical trial — Surany. Phase Il clinical trials of peramivir were iiaited in Europe in February 2000 by RWJPRI.
The trials were continued, but not completed, dytire 20002001 season, and remain blinded. On January 3, 289announced that patis
enrollment began in the United States in the PHag#al with once-a-day orally administered periam The multi-center, Phase 11l clinical
trial enrolled approximately 1,200 healthy adultsJune 2002, we announced the initial findingghd Phase I trial demonstrated no
statistically significant difference in the primagfficacy endpoint-the length of time from the fidose to the onset of clinically significant
relief of influenza symptoms between groups treatéld peramivir and groups treated with placebosé&hon these data, we had discontir
the development of peramivir in 2002.

Current status of perami\biue to the recent international concern about eniial influenza pandemic that could be initiatgd b
avian strains of the virus, peramivir has receigedsiderable attention, since it is positionedd¢mhe of very few advanced antiviral
alternatives behind oseltamivir, or Tamiflu, foldaglssing a potential pandemic. As a result, we heagitiated the clinical development of
peramivir.



Current Development Strategy

Preclinical studies comparing peramivittvother anti-influenza drugs have demonstrated peramivir has outstanding broad-
spectrum potency against multiple strains of inflzeg including the avian strain H5N1. In additiperamivir retains activity against nearly
Tamiflu-resistant strains of influenza that haverb@lentified to date. We are currently focusingrgactable formulations of peramivir that
may achieve high blood levels that should be effeagainst most strains of influenza, includingisis that may be resistant to Tamiflu. Our
IND for injectable peramivir became effective inde@enber 2005, we received fast track designatiom tlee FDA in January 2006 and
initiated a Phase | clinical with IV peramivir indvch 2006 at the NIH.

Our plan is to develop two injectablenfioitations, including intravenous peramivir for tieg acutely ill patients, and an intramuscular
injectable formulation for treatment of earliergeanfected patients. Both of these developmergnaros are being pursued in close
collaboration with research groups at the Natidnstitute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases (“NIR)) at the National Institutes of Health
(“NIH"). Currently, the clinical division of the MID is planning to run our upcoming intravenousial trials, beginning in the first quarter
of 2006, with Phase | studies in healthy voluntegithe clinical unit in NIH, and then assumingutesare positive, proceeding into Phase
[I/11l trials during 2006 at clinical sites in Sceast Asia.

We expect the intramuscular, or IM foratidn of peramivir will follow a more classical ddepment pathway with initial testing in
patients infected with seasonal flu beginning placebo controlled trial during the 2006-2007 fason. Preclinical studies have indicated
that a single injection of peramivir is effectiviepeieventing death in mice from infections withulent strains of influenza. If this finding can
be confirmed in clinical trials, we believe the fifmulation will have considerable potential fogdting patients with normal influenza
infections, in addition to providing an effectiveeaihanism for treating large numbers of patientglhafn the event of a flu pandemic.

Congress has recently approved an apptapr of $3.8 billion for 2006 to support the deymment of various countermeasures for i
pandemic. The appropriation includes funding far development of new antiviral agents, and we belgeramivir is eligible for funding
under this appropriation. Health and Human Servieesntly issued a Request for Information regaygiotential programs for the advanced
development of antiviral agents for prophylactieféipeutic usage during seasonal and pandemic mzéueutbreaks. We have responded to
this opportunity and believe that given the higllgy of the science behind peramivir, the exteagiveclinical and clinical data that we
already have available, and the advanced developofi@ur manufacturing process, we are in a stygogjtion to compete for funds available
under this pandemic preparedness initiative. We flacontinue working closely with scientists alAND to implement rapid and effective
development of peramivir.

Hepatitis C Polymerase Inhibitors

Overview

Hepatitis C virus (“HCV”) infection hagen described in the New England Journal of Medieisithe nation’s most common chronic
blood-borne infection. According to the World Héafdrganization, 3% of the world’s population arfeated with HCV and are at risk of
developing liver cirrhosis and/or liver cancer. TBIBC estimates there are an estimated 3.9 millioreAcans (approximately 2% of the
population) that have been infected with HCV, ofowh2.7 million are chronically infected. Accorditggthe CDC, as many as 55-85% of
those infected with HCV will have chronic infectiand 70% of those will develop chronic liver disea#/hile there are several approved
treatments for chronic HCV using a combination aipgrof interferon and ribavirin, there are someeptally severe side effects to these
treatments.

Background In June 2000, we licensed intellectual propemyrf Emory University (“Emory”) related to the hejpiatC polymerase
target associated with hepatitis C viral infectiddader the original terms of the agreement, tiseaech investigators from Emory provider
with materials and technical insight into the targe

Current Development Strategy

We are targeting HCV polymerase througlfaborative and in-house efforts. Specifically, are focused on development of orally
active inhibitors against the RNA-dependent RNAypotrase. Competition for this target is less ineethsin for the HCV protease target and
history suggests the likelihood of designing a ukiehibitor against this target may be better tdasigning inhibitors against the protease.
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We have designed, synthesized and salgestential compounds against HCV polymerase. $Sipally, our scientists have measured
the potency and ability of potential drug candiddteblock the replication of HCV polymerase irrejtor in test tubes. These experiments
measure the potency of each selected compoundity abiblock replication. Advanced screening wésoaused to measure the fit of
promising compounds in the HCV polymerase actitee gsing X-ray crystallography and computer molacutodeling. The goal has been to
identify a series of compounds that are potentitiio ¥nhibitors of the active site of the HCV polgmase for further testing and lead
optimization.

During 2005, we identified a lead compsuBCX-4678, for which we have made progress inpifeelinical development, plus major
improvements in the large-scale synthesis. We nawe ladequate material on hand to initiate our fimactlinical toxicology studies required
for an IND filing during 2006. Assuming that ouxioology studies verify the safety profile seeroim earlier animal studies and the FDA
accepts our IND, we plan to move directly intoiaichl trial for hepatitis C infected patients chgi2006.

We also have agreements in place withiNJAnd the U.S. Army Medical Research Instituténdéctious Diseases to assay promising
inhibitors from the HCV polymerase program for wityi against Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARVest Nile and Ebola viruses.

Tissue Factor/Factor Vlla Inhibitors

Overview

A series of complicated reactions takasgin the body whenever a blood clot begins tmfdarhe major initiator of these reactions is
an enzyme system called the tissue factor/factta YTF/FVIla”) complex. Animal tests show that vaus inhibitors of the TF/FVlla
complex can minimize blood clot formation as walliaflammatory responses. This sort of inhibiti@s been tested with a number of
biological agents including the natural inhibitdrtloe pathway, synthetic peptides and protein iinbib, and antibodies against tissue factor.
However, there are no small molecule drugs culyemilthe market that intervene at the TF/FVlla leve

We believe that small molecule inhibitofsTF/FVIla may potentially be useful for treatingute coronary syndromes and
complications associated with cardiovascular prapes] such as coronary angioplasty and stent iogeytbecause any type of damage to
arteries and blood vessels exposes tissue fadhchwhen triggers clot formation. Myocardial inféion, unstable angina, and restenosis
during and following angioplasty procedures argatential treatment targets. In addition, tissatdr is involved in angiogenesis, or new
blood vessel growth, and inhibitors of the TF/F\Mitamplex are believed to have potential as antieyamesis agents for use in oncology.

Background We have an agreement with Altor BioScience Capon (“Altor”) formerly Sunol Molecular Corporatio(“Sunol”) to
expedite the discovery of new drug candidates desigo inhibit TF/FVIla. Under the terms of this@gment, Altor supplies us protein for
our drug design program.

Current Development Strategy

We are continuing to design and syntleegibups of compounds that are potent and seldativaitors of TF/FVIla and further
optimization is ongoing to identify a compound fweclinical development of a TF/FVlla inhibitor @amal form.

Additional Products

In addition to our four active programe also retain exclusive rights to potent inhilstof parainfluenza neuraminidase and maintain
the patent portfolio for these inhibitors. We vaintinue to take the necessary steps to retaimalue of these inhibitors.

Structure-Based Drug Design

Structure-based drug design is a drugpdisry approach by which we design synthetic compgsudrom detailed structural knowledge
of the active sites of enzyme targets associatéupairticular diseases. Enzymes are proteins thatsacatalysts for many vital biological
reactions. Our goal generally is to design a comgdhat will fit in the active site of an enzymabdtactive site of an enzyme is the area into
which a chemical or biological molecule fits totiaie a biochemical reaction) and thereby interfeite the progression of disease.
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Our structure-based drug design invothesapplication of both traditional biology and rieéglal chemistry and an array of advanced
technologies. We use X-ray crystallography, compnrtedeling of molecular structures and advancednistey techniques to focus on the
three-dimensional molecular structure and actitechiaracteristics of the enzymes that controutalilbiology.

We believe that structure-based druggtetgchnologies are superior to drug screeningiigals. By identifying the target enzyme in
advance and by discovering the chemical and maestiucture of the enzyme, we believe it is pdedit design a better drug to interact
with the enzyme. In addition, the structural datéamed by X-ray crystallographic analysis allovd#idnal analysis and compound
modification at each stage of the biological evatira This capability makes structure-based drugjgiea powerful tool for efficient
development of drugs that are highly specific fartigular enzyme target sites.

Research and Development

We initiated our research and developmpeogram in 1986, with drug synthesis beginning987. We have assembled a scientific
research staff with expertise in a broad base wéacked research technologies including proteinHaodstry, X-ray crystallography,
chemistry and pharmacology. Our research facilitiekide protein biochemistry and organic synthédi®ratories, testing facilities, X-ray
crystallography, computer and graphics equipmedtfagilities to make drug candidates on a smalksita early stage clinical trials.

During the years ended December 31, 28084 and 2003, we spent $23.6, $18.9 and $11l®mitespectively on research and
development. Approximately $9.1, $8.0 and $7.5iomilof those respective amounts were spent on isédioesearch and development, and
$14.5, $10.9 and $4.0 million, respectively werergmn contract research and development.

Collaboration and In-License Relationships

We seek to enter into collaborations vatiding pharmaceutical and biotechnology compante=n we feel it is advantageous to
leverage these companies’ resources to develop@nchercialize our drug candidates on a global baliss allows us to remain focused on
our strength of early stage discovery and developrofdrug candidates. To date, we have two matlalsorations for the development and
commercialization of our lead PNP inhibitors.

Another important component of our siggtes to augment our internal discovery programsugh the selective in-licensing of
potential drug development targets or early stagepounds for these specific targets.

Corporate Alliances

Roche. In November 2005, we entered into an exclusisenise with Roche for the development and commeézatain of our second
generation PNP inhibitor, BCX-4208, for the prevemtof acute rejection in transplantation and f@ treatment of autoimmune diseases.
Under the terms of the agreement, Roche obtaineliiwidle rights to BCX-4208 in exchange for an uprfr payment of $30 million, which
included a payment as reimbursement for a limitggpky of material during the first 24 months of t@laboration. There could also be fut
event payments for achieving specified developmegtlatory and commercial milestones (includingséevel milestones following a
product’s launch) for certain indications. In aduht we will receive royalties based on a perceatignet product sales, which varies
depending upon when certain indications receive NipAroval in a major market country and can vargduyntry depending on the patent
coverage or sales of generic compounds in a p&ticountry. We licensed this compound and othelP frfhibitors from AECOM and IRL
and will owe sublicense payments to these thirtigmon the upfront payment, future event paymantsroyalties received by us for the
sublicense of these inhibitors.
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Roche will have a right of first negoiteat, under certain conditions, on existing backi{PRnhibitors we develop through Phase IIb in
transplant rejection and autoimmune diseases,iyuh@w PNP inhibitors will be exempt from this agmeent and we will retain all rights to
such compounds. We retain the right to co-promd@X 8208 in the U.S. for several indications. Robls certain obligations under the
terms of the agreement to use commercially reasemsdtorts to develop, manufacture and commeraathe licensed product. The agreen
will be governed by a joint steering committee t@rsee and review the research and developmenittiastiof both parties. The agreement
may be terminated by either party following an uedumaterial breach by the other party or may theeefully or partially terminated by
Roche without cause under certain conditions alndighits, data, materials, products and other mfmion would be transferred to us at no
cost.

Mundipharmaln February 2006, we entered into an exclusivealtgybearing right and license in the specifieditery (primarily
Europe, Asia and Australasia) with Mundipharmatfar development and commercialization of our lelé fhhibitor, Fodosine ™pr use in
oncology. Under the terms of the agreement, Muratipia obtained oncology rights to Fodosine™ in frex#ied territory in exchange for a
$10 million up-front payment. Mundipharma will sk&0% of the documented out of pocket developmestsdncurred by us in respect of
our current and planned trials as of the effeatiate of the agreement provided that Mundiphasmaaximum contribution to these trials st
be $10 million. In addition, Mundipharma will conztiadditional clinical trials at their own cost tgpa maximum of $15 million. The license
provides for future event payments for achievingcéiied development, regulatory and commercial &véncluding certain sales level
amounts following a product’s launch) for certaidications. In addition, we will receive royaltieased on a percentage of net product sales,
which varies depending upon when certain indicati@teive NDA approval in a major market countrgt aan vary by country depending on
the patent coverage or sales of generic compounagparticular country. Generally, all paymentsarttie agreement are nonrefundable and
non-creditable, but they are subject to audit. Wenised this compound and other PNP inhibitors fAds€OM and IRL and will owe
sublicense payments to these third parties onpfrent payment, future event payments and royatdesived by us for the sublicense of
these inhibitors.

For five years, Mundipharma will haveight of first negotiation on existing backup PNRibitors we develop through Phase IIb in
oncology, but any new PNP inhibitors will be exerfipi this agreement and we will retain all rigldssuch compounds. We retain the ric
to Fodosine™ in the United States (“U.S.”) and Miphdrma is obligated by the terms of the agreertense commercially reasonable
efforts to develop the licensed product in theitiey specified by the agreement. The agreementsigoverned by a Joint Steering
Committee to oversee and review the research arglai@ment activities of both parties. The agreeméltcontinue for the commercial life
of the licensed products, but may be terminatedither party following an uncured material breaghte other party or in the event the pre-
existing third party license with AECOM and IRL épgs. It may be terminated by Mundipharma upon &2sdwritten notice without cause
under certain other conditions as specified inatpeement and all rights, data, materials, prodardsother information would be transferred
to us at no cost. In the event we terminate theeagent for material default or insolvency, we ccudate to pay Mundipharma 50% of the
costs of any independent data owned by Mundiphamraacordance with the terms of the agreement.

Sunol. In April 1999, we entered into an agreement @tmol which requires Sunol to conduct researchsapply us with protein
targets for drug design to expedite the discovéryew drug candidates designed to inhibit tisswéoféfactor Vlla for our cardiovascular
program. During 2005, the assets and obligatior8uoiol were transferred to Altor BioScience Corfiora

Academic Alliances

Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva énsity and Industrial Research, Ltd, New Zealaha June 2000, we licensed a
series of potent inhibitors of PNP from AECOM ailL| The lead drug candidates from this collaboratice Fodosine™ and BCX208. We
have obtained worldwide exclusive rights to devedog ultimately distribute these, or any othergdrandidates that might arise from
research on these inhibitors. We have agreed te@agin milestone payments for future developneétihese inhibitors, certain royalties on
sales of any resulting product, and to share iaréupayments received from other thpdrty collaborators, if any. In addition, we haggeed
to pay an annual license fee that is non-refundéhieis creditable against actual royalties amtopayments due to AECOM/IRL. This
agreement may be terminated by us at any time\iggyb0 days advance notice or in the event of rietencured breach by AECOM/IRL.
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The University of Alabama at Birminghard/e have had a close relationship with UAB singeformation. Our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Dr. Charles E. Bugg, was thevjres Director of the UAB Center for Macromolecuuystallography, and our President,
Chief Operating Officer and Medical Director, DrCGlaude Bennett, was the former President of UB former Chairman of the
Department of Medicine at UAB and a former Chairroathe Department of Microbiology at UAB. Seveoélour consultants are employed
by UAB. UAB has a large X-ray crystallography centéth approximately 121 full-time staff membergdahey expect to receive
approximately $18.0 million in research grants eandtract funding for their programs in 2006. Sel/efaur early programs originated at
UAB.

We currently have agreements with UABifdluenza neuraminidase and complement inhibitoreler the terms of these agreements,
UAB performed specific research for us in returnrissearch payments and license fees. UAB hasagtarst certain rights to any discoveries
in these areas resulting from research developadiA®y or jointly developed with us. We have agreegay royalties on sales of any
resulting product and to share in future paymesteived from other third-party collaborators. Weédaompleted the research under the
UAB influenza agreement. We funded the researchraro under the complement inhibitors agreemenutjitdvarch 2002, which entitled
to an assignment of, or a right to an exclusivenge for, any inhibitors of specified complemerayenes developed by UAB scientists during
the period of support or for a one-year perioddghéer. These two agreements have initial 25-yerang, are automatically renewable for five-
year terms throughout the life of the last patert are terminable by us upon three months notidebglJAB under certain circumstance
There is currently no activity between us and UABtloese agreements, but in the event we licenbadémgy or commercialize products
related to these programs we could owe subliceseedr royalties on amounts we receive.

Emory.In June 2000, we licensed intellectual propertyrnfiemory related to the HCV polymerase target assediwith hepatitis C
viral infections. Under the original terms of thgr@ement, the research investigators from Emoryigea us with materials and technical
insight into the target. We have agreed to pay maoyalties on sales of any resulting product andhare in future payments received from
other third party collaborators, if any. We camtarate this agreement at any time by giving 90 dadxsgance notice.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our success will depend in part on odilitglto obtain and enforce patent protection for @roducts, methods, processes and other
proprietary technologies, preserve our trade sgcaeid operate without infringing on the proprigtaghts of other parties, both in the United
States and in other countries. We own or havegitgghtertain proprietary information, proprietagghnology, issued and allowed patents and
patent applications which relate to compounds eedaveloping. We actively seek, when appropriatgegtion for our products, proprietary
technology and proprietary information by meant/@. and foreign patents, trademarks and contrbattengements. In addition, we rely
upon trade secrets and contractual arrangemeptstiect certain of our proprietary information, prietary technology and products.

The patent positions of companies likes@re generally uncertain and involve complexllega factual questions. Our ability to
maintain and solidify our proprietary position fmur technology will depend on our success in olngieffective patent claims and enforcing
those claims once granted. We do not know whetineiofour patent applications or those patent apfitins that we license will result in the
issuance of any patents. Our issued patents asd that may issue in the future, or those licetsers, may be challenged, invalidated,
rendered unenforceable or circumvented, which churidl our ability to stop competitors from markegi related products or the length of
term of patent protection that we may have formnaducts. In addition, the rights granted underiaeyed patents may not provide us with
competitive advantages against competitors withlairmompounds or technology. Furthermore, our cetibprs may independently develop
similar technologies or duplicate any technologyadeped by us in a manner that does not infringepatents or other intellectual property.
Because of the extensive time required for develpintesting and regulatory review of a potentialdoict, it is possible that, before any of
our drug candidates or those developed by ourloai&ors can be commercialized, any related patagtexpire or remain in force for only
short period following commercialization, therelegucing any advantage of the patent.

As of February 20, 2006, we have beamed28 U.S. patents that expire between 2009 a8 20d that relate to our PNP, serine
protease and neuraminidase inhibitor compoundsh&Ve licensed six additional composition of mati@ents and two pending composition
of matter patents from AECOM and IRL for our PNRibitors, plus additional manufacturing patentated to these PNP inhibitors and one
patent from Emory related to hepatitis C. Additibynave have 13 U.S. patent applications pendirdgteel to PNP, neuraminidase, RNA viral
polymerase, paramyxovirus neuraminidase, and spriotease inhibitors. Our pending applications matyresult in issued patents, and our
patents may not provide us with sufficient protectagainst competitive products or otherwise berneraially viable.
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Our success is also dependent upon thig, gkowledge and experience of our scientifid aschnical personnel, none of which is
patentable. To help protect our rights, we reqgalremployees, consultants, advisors and collabosdb enter into confidentiality agreeme
which prohibit the disclosure of confidential infieation to anyone outside of our company and requiigclosure and assignment to us of
their ideas, developments, discoveries and invastibhese agreements may not provide adequatetiootéor our trade secrets, know-how
or other proprietary information in the event offamauthorized use or disclosure or the lawful tgw@ent by others of such information.

Marketing and Sales

We currently plan to market, distributelaell Fodosine™ in the U.S. for use in treatnudrit-cell and B-cell cancers. Although our
general strategy is to rely on major marketing camgs for worldwide commercialization of most protfuwe may develop, we believe that
we can manage the highly specialized oncology mdokd-odosine™ within the U.S. Most patients waitivanced T-cell malignancies in the
U.S. are treated at major referral cancer cendmis we expect that many of these centers will béggaating in our Phase I trials and will
thus be familiar with Fodosine™ if it reaches tharket. However, we lack experience in marketingtritiuting and selling pharmaceutical
products. Our general strategy is to rely on caltators, licensees or arrangements with othersaige for the marketing, distribution and
sales of products we may develop. We may not betabédstablish and maintain acceptable commengimhgements with collaborators,
licensees or others to perform such activities.

Competition

The pharmaceutical and biotechnology s$tides are intensely competitive. Many companigauiding biotechnology, chemical and
pharmaceutical companies, are actively engagedtivitees similar to ours, including research amelopment of drugs for the treatment of
cancer, infectious, autoimmune, inflammatory andlicwascular diseases and disorders. Many of tbesganies have substantially greater
financial and other resources, larger researctdamdlopment staffs, and more extensive marketidgnaanufacturing organizations than we
do. In addition, some of them have considerableg&pce in preclinical testing, clinical trials aotther regulatory approval procedures. For
example, in October 2005, the FDA announced theoa@pof Arranon (nelarabine) for the treatmenadtilts and children with T-cell acute
lymphoblastic leukemia. This drug was approved utige FDA'’s orphan drug and accelerated approweat tfack) programs and will be
distributed and marketed by GSK. We are curremttying Fodosine™ in T-cell ALL and have also reediboth orphan drug and fast track
designation from the FDA. There are also acadensititutions, governmental agencies and other reseaganizations that are conducting
research in areas in which we are working. They alsy market commercial products, either on thein or through collaborative efforts.

We expect to encounter significant contioet for any of the pharmaceutical products wengladevelop. Companies that complete
clinical trials, obtain required regulatory apprtsvand commence commercial sales of their produsfisre their competitors may achieve a
significant competitive advantage. Such is the eéife GSK’s Arranon for T-cell ALL and the curreneuraminidase inhibitors marketed by
GSK and Roche for influenza. In addition, sevetanmaceutical and biotechnology firms, includingangharmaceutical companies and
specialized structure-based drug design compames, announced efforts in the field of structuredabdrug design and in the fields of PNP,
HCV, influenza, and TF/FVIla.

In order to compete successfully, we naestelop proprietary positions in patented drugsHerapeutic markets that have not been
satisfactorily addressed by conventional researeliegiies and, in the process, expand our expéntisteucture-based drug design. Our
products, even if successfully tested and developeg not be adopted by physicians over other misdand may not offer economically
feasible alternatives to other therapies.
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Government Regulation

The FDA regulates the pharmaceuticallzintechnology industries in the U.S., and our dragdidates are subject to extensive and
rigorous domestic government regulations priordmmercialization. The FDA regulates, among otherg$, the development, testing,
manufacture, safety, efficacy, record-keeping, liagestorage, approval, advertising, promotiore gand distribution of pharmaceutical
products. In foreign countries, our products ase aubject to extensive regulation by foreign goments. These government regulations will
be a significant factor in the production and mérgof any pharmaceutical products that we devef@ilure to comply with applicable FC
and other regulatory requirements at any stageduhie regulatory process may subject us to sarg;tincluding:

. delays;

. warning letters

. fines;

. product recalls or seizure

. injunctions;

. penalties

. refusal of the FDA to review pending market appt@gplications or supplements to approval applocesi
. total or partial suspension of productic

. civil penalties;

. withdrawals of previously approved marketing apgiicns; anc
. criminal prosecutions

The regulatory review and approval prededengthy, expensive and uncertain. Before abtgiregulatory approvals for the
commercial sale of any products, we or our liceaseast demonstrate that our product candidatesadieeand effective for use in humans.
The approval process takes many years, substarpiehses may be incurred and significant time neagidvoted to clinical development.

Before testing potential candidates imhas, we carry out laboratory and animal studietetermine safety and biological activity.
After completing preclinical trials, we must file &8\D, including a proposal to begin clinical tsalvith the FDA. We have filed twelve INDs
to date and plan to file, or rely on future partnrfile, additional INDs in the future as our g@utial drug candidates advance to that stage of
development. Thirty days after filing an IND, a Bea human clinical trial can start, unless the Riddces a hold on the study.

Our Phase | trials are designed to determpafety in a small group of patients or healtblunteers. We also assess tolerances and the
metabolic and pharmacologic actions of our drugladates at different doses. After we complete tiitgal trials, we conduct Phase Il trials
assess safety and efficacy and establish the dpdiosa in patients. If Phase Il trials are sucagésafe or our licensees conduct Phase 11l t1
to verify the results in a larger patient populatiBhase 1l trials are required for FDA approwahtarket a drug. A Phase Il trial may require
hundreds or even thousands of patients and is tis expensive to conduct. The goal in Phase tb mollect enough safety and efficacy data
to obtain FDA approval of a drug for treatment qfaaticular disease. For some clinical indicatithveg are especially serious and for which
there are no effective treatments, such as refiacemcers, conditional approval can be obtainddviing Phase 1l trials.

Initiation and completion of the clinidaial phases are dependent on several factorsdimg) things that are beyond our control. For
example, the clinical trials cannot begin at aipatar site until that site receives approval frissinstitutional Review Board (“IRB”), which
reviews the protocol and related documents. Thosgss can take from several weeks to several mdnthsidition, clinical trials are
dependent on patient enrollment, but the rate &thwbatients enroll in the study depends on:
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. willingness of investigators to participate in adst;

. ability of clinical sites to obtain approval froinetir IRB;
. the size of the patient population we intend tati

. the availability of patients

. the willingness of patients to participate; ¢

. the patients meeting the eligibility criter

Delays in planned patient enrollment mesult in increased expense and longer developtimelines.

After completion of the clinical trial§ a product, we or our licensees must submit a ND#fhe FDA for marketing approval before
commercialization of the product. The FDA may n&rg approval on a timely basis, if at all. The F[2& a result of the Food and Drug
Administration Modernization Act of 1997, has sixnths to review and act upon license applicationgfiority therapeutics that are for life-
threatening or unmet medical needs. Standard revien take between one and two years, and cantaketonger if significant questions
arise during the review process. The FDA may wilkdany required approvals, once obtained.

In addition to clinical development regfihns, we and our contract manufacturers andaiéors must comply with the applicable
FDA current good manufacturing practice (“GMP”) uéagions. GMP regulations include requirementstiadgto quality control and quality
assurance as well as the corresponding mainterdimeeords and documentation. Manufacturing faeglitare subject to inspection by the
FDA. Such facilities must be approved before we usethem in commercial manufacturing of our péséproducts. We or our contract
manufacturers may not be able to comply with thaieable GMP requirements and other FDA regulateguirements. If we or our contract
manufacturers fail to comply, our business, finahcondition and results of operations will be mially adversely affected.

Human Resources

As of February 28, 2005, we had 52 emgday of whom 37 were engaged in research and geweltt and 15 were in general and
administrative functions. Our scientific staff, @8dwhom hold Ph.D. or M.D. degrees, has diversiBggerience in biochemistry,
pharmacology, X-ray crystallography, synthetic aiigachemistry, computational chemistry, and meditghemistry. We consider our
relations with our employees to be satisfactory.

Scientific Advisory Board and Consultants

Our scientific advisory board is compds# five scientific advisors who are leaders int@@ of our core disciplines or who otherwise
have specific expertise in our therapeutic focesisrWe also have consulting agreements with a euoftother scientists with expertise in
our core disciplines or who are specialists inass or treatments on which we focus. The sciemtifvisory board meets as a group at
scheduled meetings and the consultants meet mexyadntly, on an individual basis, with our scigatffersonnel and management to discuss
our ongoing research and drug discovery and dexedap projects. The scientific advisory board cassi$ the following individuals:

Name Position

Albert F. LoBuglio, M.D. (Chairman) Director Emeritus and Distinguished Professor of Tmiversity Of Alabama
at Birmingham Comprehensive Cancer Cer

Gordon N. Gill, M.D. Professor of MedicinEmeritusat the University of California, San Diego
School of Medicine

Lorraine J. Gudas, Ph.D. Professor and Chairman, Department of Pharmacdlgill Medical College
of Cornell University, Revlon Pharmaceutical Prefasof Pharmacology and
Toxicology.
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Name Position

Herbert A. Hauptman, Ph.D. President of the Hauptman-Woodward Medical Reselastiiute, Inc.
(formerly the Medical Foundation (Buffalo), Incand Research Professor in
Biophysical Sciences and Distinguished Profess@tinctural Biology at the
State University of New York (Buffalo). Recipierttthe Nobel Prize in
Chemistry (1985)

Hamilton O. Smith, M.D. Professor, Molecular Biology and Genetics Departra¢ihe Johns Hopkins
University School of Medicine, retired, and SciéintDirector of the Synthet
Biology and Biological Energy Groups at the J. Grdenter Institute in
Rockville, Maryland. Recipient of the Nobel PrizeNedicine (1978)

The scientific advisors and the consuftame reimbursed for their expenses and receirenab cash compensation in connection with
their service and have been issued options to peeckhares of common stock. The scientific advisodsthe consultants are all employed by
or have consulting agreements with entities othantus, some of which may compete with us in theréu The scientific advisors and the
consultants are expected to devote only a smdiiqpoof their time to our business, although noc#fietime commitment has been
established. They are not expected to participetieady in our affairs or in the development of dechnology. Several of the institutions with
which the scientific advisors and the consultansadfiliated may adopt new regulations or polidiest limit the ability of the scientific
advisors and the consultants to consult with ug. [dhs of the services of the scientific advisord the consultants could adversely affect us
to the extent that we are pursuing research orlderent in areas relevant to the scientific adwsand consultants’ expertise. To the extent
members of our scientific advisory board or thestdtants have consulting arrangements with or becemployed by any of our competitc
we could be materially adversely affected.

Any inventions or processes independetiigovered by the scientific advisors or the cétasts may not become our property and
probably remain the property of such persons @uch persons’ employers. In addition, the institugi with which the scientific advisors and
the consultants are affiliated may make availdidéeresearch services of their personnel, incluthiegscientific advisors and the consultants,
to our competitors pursuant to sponsored reseapaements. We require the scientific advisors aeccbnsultants to enter into
confidentiality agreements which prohibit the distlre of confidential information to anyone outsid@ur company and require disclosure
and assignment to us of their ideas, developmdisispveries or inventions. However, our competitoes/ gain access to trade secrets and
other proprietary information developed by us aistldsed to the scientific advisors and the coasidt

Available Information

We have available a website on the Itern®ur address is www.biocryst.com. We makelalkd at our website our Annual Reports
on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, CurReports on Form 8-K, and amendments to thosgrtefiled or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soreasonably practicable after we electronicdysich material with, or furnish it to, the
SEC. We also make available at our website cagfiesir audit committee charter, compensation conemitharter, corporate governance
nominating committee charter and our code of besim®nduct, which applies to all employees of BygCas well as the members of our
Board of Directors.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our stock involves a high degfa&sk. You should consider carefully the followigks, along with all of the other
information included in our other filings with ttgecurities and Exchange Commission, before dectdibgy our common stock. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known to ushat we currently deem to be immaterial may atapair our business operations. If we
are unable to prevent events that have a negaffeetdrom occurring, then our business may suffgative events are likely to decrease
our revenue, increase our costs, make our finaneslilts poorer and/or decrease our financial sgm and may cause our stock price to
decline. In that case, you may lose all or a pdrya@ur investment in our common stock.

Risks Relating to Our Business
We have incurred substantial losses since our inception in 1986, expect to continue to incur such losses, and may never be profitable.

Since our inception in 1986, we havebe®n profitable. We expect to incur additional ésskor the foreseeable future, and our losses
could increase as our research and developmemtseffiamgress. As of December 31, 2005, our accumualiideficit was approximately $151.9
million. To become profitable, we must successfdiwelop drug product candidates, enter into @bk agreements with other parties and
our product candidates must receive regulatory@ambr We or these other parties must then sucdgssfianufacture and market our product
candidates. It could be several years, if evegrieaive receive royalties from any current or futizense agreements or revenues directly
from product sales.

Because of the numerous risks and urioéda associated with developing our product caaigis and their potential for
commercialization, we are unable to predict themixbf any future losses or when we will becomditaiole, if at all. Even if we do achieve
profitability, we may not be able to sustain orrgase profitability on a quarterly or annual baisie are unable to achieve and sustain
profitability, the market value of our common stoel likely decline.

If we fail to obtain additional financing, we may be unable to complete the development and commercialization of our product candidates
or continue our research and development programs.

To date, we have financed our operatgimarily from sale of our equity securities armatlesser extent, revenues from collabora:
and interest. In 2005, our operations consumedoappately $2.0 million per month. Our initial prajgon for 2006 is that our average burn
rate for 2006 will be approximately $2.5 millionrpaonth. We expect that our monthly cash used yatjpns will continue to increase for
the next couple of years as our clinical programeseaxpanded. We are planning to be in a Phasautigb trial with Fodosine™ in 2006 in T-
cell leukemia and are in the early stages of dihidals in several other indications with Fod@ih. As these trials increase in size and
patient enroliment increases, our costs will inseedn addition, we expect our neuraminidase indibperamivir, to be in clinical trials in the
first quarter of 2006 and our hepatitis C drug dédatd, BCX-4678 to be in clinical trials during Z00rhese additional trials and the related
manufacturing, personnel resources and testingrezto support these studies will consume sigaiftacapital resources and will increase
our expenses and our net loss.

This monthly burn rate could vary sigedfintly depending on many factors, including ouligttio raise additional capital, the
development progress of our existing partnerstopstr drug candidates, the amount of funding eiséance we receive from governmental
agencies or other new partnerships with third parfior the development of our drug candidates ireg# and for peramivir specifically, the
progress and results of our current and proposeital trials for Fodosine™, peramivir and BCX-461i8e progress made in the
manufacturing of our products and the progressfaruoother programs. As of December 31, 2005, a@ $60.0 million in cash, cash
equivalents and securities. We raised $30 millapptoximately $29.9 million, net of expenses) ircEmaber 2005 through a sale of equity to
provide the resources necessary to continue thelafawent of our existing programs, while prudemtlgintaining our cash position. In
addition, we established a collaborative relatigms¥ith Roche in November 2005 and a collaboratalationship with Mundipharma in
February 2006, which provided additional cash iG®et of third party license fees, totaling apprately $32 million. Our long-term
capital requirements and the adequacy of our édaifainds will depend upon many factors, including:
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. the progress of our research, drug discovery amdldpment program:

. changes in existing collaborative relationsh

. our ability to establish additional collaborativeationships with academic institutions, biotecloggl or pharmaceutical
companies, governmental agencies or other thirtlega

. the extent to which our collaborators, includinggamental agencies will share in the costs astastiaith the development
our programs or run the development programs thigess:

. our ability to negotiate favorable development axatketing alliances for our drug product candide

. the magnitude of our research and development gnas;

. the scope and results of preclinical studies aimicall trials to identify drug product candidatewlahe costs of manufacturing
drug product to support these studies and ti

. competitive and technological advanc

. the time and costs involved in obtaining regulat@pprovals

. the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining and enforcing patent clair

. our dependence on others for development and cocomtization of our product candidates; ¢

. successful commercialization of our products cdestswith our licensing strateg

We will be required to raise additionapital to complete the development and commereitidin of our current product candidates.
Additional funding, whether through additional saté securities or collaborative or other arrangets@ith corporate partners, governme
agencies or from other sources, may not be availahken needed or on terms acceptable to us. Tireniss of preferred or common stock or
convertible securities, with terms and prices digantly more favorable than those of the curreotystanding common stock, could have the
effect of diluting or adversely affecting the haids or rights of our existing stockholders. In &ddi, collaborative arrangements may require
us to transfer certain material rights to such cmafe partners as described in the following rédtdr related to collaborative relationships.
Insufficient funds may require us to delay, scadekbor eliminate certain of our research and deyreknt programs.

If we fail to establish collaborative relationships to commercialize certain of our drug product candidates or if any collaborator terminates
or failsto perform its obligations under agreements with us, the commercialization of our product candidates could be delayed or
terminated.

A key aspect of our business stratedy enter into successful collaborative arrangemeitts pharmaceutical companies, research
institutions, the United States government and ensities for the preclinical development, clinidavelopment, regulatory approval,
marketing, domestic and international sales antiloligion of our drug product candidates. Our gahstrategy is to rely upon other parties
for all of these steps so that we can focus exadligion the key areas of our expertise. For somalermiche markets, we may perform these
steps ourselves and outsource those functions wiedo not have the internal expertise.

Currently, we have established collabeeatelationships with two pharmaceutical companische and Mundipharma for
development and commercialization of BCX-4208 anddsine ™ respectively. There is currently work being botarpled and performed |
various governmental agencies for the developmieone of our drug candidates, peramivir, for théeptial use in avian influenza. Any
contracts with governmental agencies may not bepteted on terms favorable to us, or at all, andr@wgnues under such contracts may not
cover the development costs of our programs. Thegss of establishing collaborative relationshgpdifficult, time-consuming and involves
significant uncertainty. Heavy reliance upon caliediive relationships with these third partiestfarse critical functions presents several
risks, including:
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. our collaborators may seek to renegotiate or teatritheir relationships with us due to unsatisfigcttinical results, a change
in business strategy, a change of control or atesons

. our contracts for collaborative arrangements mapjrex

. our partners may choose to pursue alternative tdabies, including those of our competitc

. we may have disputes with a partner that could teditigation or arbitration

. we do not have day to day control over the acésitf our collaborators and have limited contra@rabheir decisions

. our ability to generate future event payments ayalties from our collaborators depends upon ollalorators’ abilities to

establish the safety and efficacy of our drug cdaigis, obtain regulatory approvals and achieve enadceptance of products
developed from our drug candidat

. our collaborators may not properly maintain or defeur intellectual property rights, where appliealor they may utilize our
proprietary information in such a way as to invitigation that could jeopardize or potentially adidate our proprietary
information or expose us to potential liabili

. our partners may not devote sufficient capitalemources towards our product candidates;

. our partners may not comply with applicable goveentregulatory requirement

If any collaborator fails to fulfill iteesponsibilities in a timely manner, or at all, gsommercialization efforts related to that
collaboration could be delayed or terminated, anadly be necessary for us to assume responsililitgdtivities that would otherwise have
been the responsibility of our collaborator. If are unable to establish and maintain collaboratlationships on acceptable terms, we may
have to delay or discontinue further developmendraf or more of our product candidates, undertakeneercialization activities at our own
expense or find alternative sources of fundingy Aalay in the development or commercializatiomof compounds would severely affect
our business, because if our compounds do not@seghrough the development process or reach thHeetia a timely manner, or at all, we
may not receive additional future event paymentsraay never receive product or royalty payments.

We have not commercialized any products or technologies and our future revenue generation isuncertain.

We have not yet commercialized any présloc technologies, and we may never be able sod®ur revenue from collaborative
agreements is dependent upon the status of odirpcatand clinical programs. If we fail to advanthese programs to the point of being
to enter into successful collaborations, we will receive any future milestone or other collabeeapayments.

Any future revenue directly from prodseles would depend on our ability to successfudipglete clinical studies, obtain regulatory
approvals, manufacture, market and commercialigeapproved drugs.

If our development collaborations with other parties fail, the development of our drug product candidates will be delayed or stopped.

We rely heavily upon other parties fomyp@mnportant stages of our drug development prograneluding:

. discovery of proteins that cause or enable biokigieactions necessary for the progression of iseade or disorder, called
enzyme target:

. licensing or design of enzyme inhibitors for deyhent as drug product candidat

. execution of some preclinical studies and-stage development for our compounds and produclidates;
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. management of our clinical trials, including medliceonitoring and data manageme

. execution of additional toxicology studies that nieyrequired to obtain approval for our productdidates;

. manufacturing the starting materials required tonidate our drug products and the drug producksetased in both our clinic
trials and toxicology studie

. management of our regulatory function; ¢

. manufacturing, sales, marketing and distributioowf product candidate

Our failure to engage in successful dutations at any one of these stages would grampigct our business. If we do not license
enzyme targets or inhibitors from academic indting or from other biotechnology companies on atat#p terms, our product development
efforts would suffer. Similarly, if the contractsearch organizations that conduct our initial te-istage clinical trials, conduct our toxicology
studies, manufacture our starting materials and graducts or manage our regulatory function breddheir obligations to us, this would
delay or prevent the development of our producticiates.

Our development of both intravenous and intramuscular dosing of peramivir for avian flu is subject to all disclosed drug development and
potential commercialization risks and numerous additional risks. Any potential revenue benefitsto us are highly speculative.

We have reinitiated development of ofilugnza neuraminidase inhibitor, peramivir. Furtdervelopment and potential
commercialization of peramivir is subject to akttisks and uncertainties disclosed in our othsde fiactors relating to drug development and
commercialization. In addition, potential commelizition of peramivir is subject to further riskscluding the following:

. the injectable version of peramivir is at an eathge of development, has not been tested in huamahmay not be safe or
effective;

. necessary government or other third party fundimg) dinical testing for further development of parair may not be available
timely, at all, or in sufficient amount

. the avian flu prevention or treatment concerns matymaterialize at all, or in the near futu

. advances in flu vaccines could substantially replaatential demand for an antiviral such as perar

. any substantial demand for avian flu treatments otayr before peramivir can be adequately develapeidtested in clinical
trials;

. numerous large and well-established pharmacewitdl biotech companies will be competing to meetntlarket demand for
avian flu drugs and vaccine

. regulatory authorities may not make needed accomatiwts to accelerate the drug testing and appmealess for peramivir;
and

. in the next few years, it is expected that a lichitember of governmental entities will be the priynaotential customers for
peramivir. If we are not successful at marketiegamivir to these entities for any reason, we ol receive substantial
revenues

If any or all of these and other risktéas occur, we will not attain significant revenwegross margins from peramivir and our stock
price will be adversely affected.
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Because we have limited manufacturing experience, we depend on third-party manufacturers to manufacture our drug product candidates
and the materials for our product candidates. If we cannot rely on third-party manufacturers, we will be required to incur significant costs
and potential delaysin finding new third-party manufacturers.

We have limited manufacturing experieand only a small scale manufacturing facility. Werently rely upon third-party
manufacturers to manufacture the materials reqdiedur drug product candidates and most of tleelprical and clinical quantities of our
product candidates. We depend on these third-paatyufacturers to perform their obligations in agiynrmanner and in accordance with
applicable governmental regulations. Our thirdypananufacturers may encounter difficulties with b our requirements, including
problems involving:

. inconsistent production yield

. interruption of the delivery of materials requified the manufacturing proces

. scheduling of plant time with other vendors or yreoted equipment failur

. potential catastrophes that could strike theirlitées;

. poor quality control and assurance or inadequategss controls; ar

. lack of compliance with regulations and specificasi set forth by the FDA or other foreign regulgtagencies

These contract manufacturers may notheta manufacture the materials required or ougdroduct candidates at a cost or in
guantities necessary to make them commerciallyl@idlle also have no control over whether thirdyparanufacturers breach their
agreements with us or whether they may terminati=oline to renew agreements with us. To datethord party manufacturers have met:
manufacturing requirements, but they may not camtito do so. Furthermore, changes in the manufagtprocess or procedure, including a
change in the location where the drug is manufadtar a change of a third-party manufacturer, negyire prior review and approval in
accordance with the FDA'’s current Good Manufacyifimactices, or cGMPs, and comparable foreign remants. This review may be
costly and timezonsuming and could delay or prevent the launchmfoduct. The FDA or similar foreign regulatoryeagies at any time mi
also implement new standards, or change theirprgtation and enforcement of existing standardsnfanufacture, packaging or testing of
products. If we or our contract manufacturers arable to comply, we or they may be subject to ratguy action, civil actions or penalties.

If we are unable to enter into agreemuiitts additional manufacturers on commercially magble terms, or if there is poor
manufacturing performance on the part of our thiady manufacturers, we may not be able to completelopment of, or market, our
product candidates.

Our raw materials, drug substances, and groducts are manufactured by a limited groupupipliers and some at a single facility. If
any of these suppliers were unable to produce tit@®es, this could significantly impact our suppliydrugs for further preclinical testing and
clinical trials.

We may be unable to establish sales, marketing and distribution capabilities necessary to successfully commercialize products we may
successfully develop.

We currently have no marketing capabdityd no direct or thirgharty sales or distribution capabilities. If we sessfully develop a dn
product candidate and decide to commercializertelues rather than relying on third parties, asaveeconsidering doing in the United Ste
for Fodosine™, we may be unable to establish mandiesales and distribution capabilities necessagommercialize and gain market
acceptance for that product.

If the clinical trials of our drug product candidates fail, our product candidates will not be marketed, which would result in a complete
absence of product related revenue.
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To receive the regulatory approvals nsagsfor the sale of our product candidates, wauoiicensees must demonstrate through
preclinical studies and clinical trials that eacbduct candidate is safe and effective. If we tveothird party collaborators are unable to
demonstrate that our product candidates are sdfeféective, our product candidates will not reeeiegulatory approval and will not be
marketed, which would result in a complete abserfiggoduct related revenue. The clinical trial prsg is complex and uncertain. Because of
the cost and duration of clinical trials, we magide to discontinue development of product candisl#fhat are either unlikely to show good
results in the trials or unlikely to help advangaraduct to the point of a meaningful collaboratiBositive results from preclinical studies
early clinical trials do not ensure positive resiitt clinical trials designed to permit application regulatory approval, called pivotal clinical
trials. We may suffer significant setbacks in palatlinical trials, even after earlier clinicalats show promising results. Any of our product
candidates may produce undesirable side effedtanmans. These side effects could cause us or tegukuthorities to interrupt, delay or t
clinical trials of a product candidate. These sffects could also result in the FDA or foreignukegory authorities refusing to approve the
product candidate for any targeted indications. W licensees, the FDA or foreign regulatory atitles may suspend or terminate clinical
trials at any time if we or they believe the tpalrticipants face unacceptable health risks. Glirtitals may fail to demonstrate that our
product candidates are safe or effective.

We are negotiating a special protocoéssment, or SPA, of the clinical trial protocol foe proposed Phase llb clinical trial of
Fodosine™ in T-cell leukemia. An SPA is an agreetnibetween an applicant and the FDA on the degigrtlze size of clinical trials that is
intended to form the basis of a New Drug Applicat{tNDA”). In connection with an SPA, an applicanay decide, or the FDA may require
the applicant, to modify the proposed protocolfoy.example, changing the proposed primary endpthetsize of the study or otherwise,
which may result in a delay in the initiation omgpletion of the clinical trials that are the subjetthe SPA. These changes could arise fr
change in the standard of care for the proposadatidn or other aspects of the protocol for thepmsed clinical trials. If the FDA and an
applicant reach an agreement on an SPA, the SPAotae changed after the clinical trial begins,eptdn limited circumstances such as a
change in the science or clinical knowledge ableitconditions being studied. Any significant chatmhe protocols for a clinical trial
subject to an SPA would require prior FDA approwdijch could delay implementation of such a chaagg continuation and completion of
the related clinical trial.

Clinical trials are lengthy and expensiée or our collaborators incur substantial expdoseand devote significant time to, preclini
testing and clinical trials, yet cannot be certhit the tests and trials will ever result in tieenenercial sale of a product. For example, clin
trials require adequate supplies of drug and geffiqatient enrollment. Delays in patient enrolfinean result in increased costs and longer
development times. Even if we or our licenseesesgfally complete clinical trials for our produentiidates, we or our licensees might not
file the required regulatory submissions in a tymalanner and may not receive regulatory approvahi®e product candidate.

If we or our licensees do not obtain and maintain governmental approvalsfor our products under development, we or our partnerswill not
be able to sell these potential products, which would significantly harm our business because we will receive no revenue.

We or our licensees must obtain reguasmproval before marketing or selling our futuragiproducts. If we or our licensees are
unable to receive regulatory approval and do naoketar sell our future drug products, we will neveceive any revenue from such product
sales. In the United States, we or our partnerg phtain FDA approval for each drug that we intémdommercialize. The FDA approval
process is typically lengthy and expensive, and@g is never certain. Products distributed abraadalso subject to foreign government
regulation. The FDA or foreign regulatory agendiase not approved any of our drug product candiddtteve or our licensees fail to obtain
regulatory approval we will be unable to market aati our future drug products. We have severaf gmoducts in various stages of
preclinical and clinical development; however, we anable to determine when, if ever, any of th@seducts will be commercially available.
Because of the risks and uncertainties in biopheeutical development, our product candidates ctad a significantly longer time to gain
regulatory approval than we expect or may nevar gpproval. If the FDA delays regulatory approviabor product candidates, our
management’s credibility, our compaawalue and our operating results may suffer. Eivtie FDA or foreign regulatory agencies approy
product candidate, the approval may limit the iatkd uses for a product candidate and/or may egast-marketing studies.
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The FDA regulates, among other things,réitord keeping and storage of data pertainipgtential pharmaceutical products. We
currently store most of our preclinical researctadsd our facility. While we do store duplicate @spof most of our clinical data offsite, we
could lose important preclinical data if our fagilincurs damage. If we get approval to marketpmatential products, whether in the United
States or internationally, we will continue to hebfect to extensive regulatory requirements. Thegairements are wide ranging and govern,
among other things:

. adverse drug experience reporting regulati

. product promaotion

. product manufacturing, including good manufactuingctice requirements; al
. product changes or modificatior

Our failure to comply with existing ortfwe regulatory requirements, or our loss of, @andes to, previously obtained approvals, could
have a material adverse effect on our businesaibecae will not receive product or royalty reveniiege or our licensees do not receive
approval of our products for marketing.

In June 1995, we notified the FDA thatsubmitted incorrect data for our Phase 1l studidBCX-34 applied to the skin for CTCL and
psoriasis. The FDA inspected us in November 19@bissued us a List of Inspectional ObservationsirHBDA 483, which cited our failure
to follow good clinical practices. The FDA alsojested us in June 1996. The focus was on the t@6 P8ase |l dose-ranging studies of
topical BCX-34 for the treatment of CTCL and pseisaAs a result of the investigation, the FDA e$ws a Form FDA 483, which cited our
failure to follow good clinical practices. We are longer developing BCX-34; however, as a consecgiehthese two investigations, our
ongoing and future clinical studies may receiveeased scrutiny, which may delay the regulatoryeng@\process.

If our drug product candidates do not achieve broad market acceptance, our business may never become profitable.

Our drug product candidates may not ¢faénmarket acceptance required for us to be phbfitaven if they successfully complete
initial and final clinical trials and receive apped for sale by the FDA or foreign regulatory agesc The degree of market acceptance of any
product candidates that we or our partners dewelbbplepend on a number of factors, including:

. our clinical evidence of safety and effica

. cos-effectiveness, convenience and ease of use ofrodupt candidate:

. their safety, availability and effectiveness relatto alternative treatment

. the actual and potential side effects or othertieas,

. reimbursement policies of government and -party payers; an

. the effectiveness of marketing and distributionmarpfor our product candidate

Physicians, patients, payers or the nadiemmunity in general may not accept or use oodyct candidates even after the FDA or
foreign regulatory agencies approve the drug cadsl If our product candidates do not achieveifiignt market acceptance, we will not
have enough revenues to become profitable.

We face intense competition, and if we are unable to compete effectively, the demand for our products, if any, may be reduced.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical stidess are highly competitive and subject to ragid substantial technological change. We
face, and will continue to face, competition in tleensing of desirable disease targets, licensfrdesirable drug product candidates, and
development and marketing of our product candid@tes academic institutions, government agenciesearch institutions and
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies. Cotnetinay also arise from, among other things:

25



. other drug development technologi
. methods of preventing or reducing the incidencdisdéase, including vaccines; a

. new small molecule or other classes of therapaggamts
Developments by others may render oudycbcandidates or technologies obsolete or nonetitive.

We and our licensees are performing resean or developing products for the treatmergensferal disorders including T-cell mediated
disorders (T-cell cancers, psoriasis, transplgetten, and rheumatoid arthritis), oncology, ihza, hepatitis C and cardiovascular
disorders. We expect to encounter significant cditipe for any of the pharmaceutical products warplo develop. Companies that complete
clinical trials, obtain required regulatory apprtsvand commence commercial sales of their prochefisre their competitors may achieve a
significant competitive advantage. Such is the eatie GSK'’s Arranon for T-cell ALL and the curreneuraminidase inhibitors marketed by
GSK and Roche for influenza. In addition, sevefanmaceutical and biotechnology firms, includingen@harmaceutical companies and
specialized structure-based drug design compamie® announced efforts in the field of structuredohdrug design and in the fields of PNP,
hepatitis C, influenza, and tissue factor/factoiaVIlf one or more of our competitors’ productgpoograms are successful, the market for our
products may be reduced or eliminated.

Compared to us, many of our competitois potential competitors have substantially greater

. capital resource

. research and development resources, including peesand technology
. regulatory experienct

. preclinical study and clinical testing experien

. manufacturing and marketing experience;

. production facilities

Any of these competitive factors coulduee demand for our products.

If we fail to adequately protect or enforce our intellectual property rights or securerightsto patents of others, the value of those rights
would diminish.

Our success will depend in part on odiitgland the abilities of our collaborators to alst patent protection for our products, methods,
processes and other technologies we may licendevalop, to preserve our trade secrets, and t@atgpesithout infringing the proprietary
rights of third parties both domestically and alokoBhe patent position of biotechnology and phaeungéical companies is generally highly
uncertain, involves complex legal and factual goestand has recently been the subject of muajatitin. Neither the United States Patent
and Trademark Office (“USPTQ"), nor the courts haveonsistent policy regarding the breadth of céaathowed or the degree of protection
afforded under many biotechnology and pharmacduyietznts. The validity, enforceability and comnigirgalue of these rights, therefore, is
highly uncertain.

Our success depends in part on avoidiagrifringement of other partiegatents and proprietary rights as well as avoitligbreach ¢
any licenses relating to our technologies and prtsdun the U.S., patent applications filed in rgogears are confidential for 18 months, w
older applications are not published until the paiesues. As a result, avoiding patent infringetmeay be difficult and we may inadvertently
infringe thirdparty patents or proprietary rights. These thirdips could bring claims against us, our collabarsbr our licensors that ever
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resolved in our favor, could cause us to incur tami&l expenses and, if resolved against us, cadifitionally cause us to pay substantial
damages. Further, if a patent infringement suitW@ought against us, our collaborators or ounkoes, we or they could be forced to stop or
delay research, development, manufacturing or sdilamy infringing product in the country or couas covered by the patent we infringe,
unless we can obtain a license from the patenthoflch a license may not be available on accleptatms, or at all, particularly if the third
party is developing or marketing a product compagitvith the infringing product. Even if we, ourltadorators or our licensors were able to
obtain a license, the rights may be nonexclusileéclvwould give our competitors access to the samedectual property.

If we or our partners are unable to adégjy protect or enforce our intellectual propeights for our products, methods, processes and
other technologies, the value of the drug prodaotiidates that we license to derive revenue woinhihish. Additionally, if our products,
methods, processes and other technologies infthrgproprietary rights of other parties, we coulcur substantial costs. The USPTO has
issued to us a number of U.S. patents for our uarioventions and we have in-licensed several pafesm various institutions. We have
filed additional patent applications and provisigp@tent applications with the USPTO. We have féegumber of corresponding foreign
patent applications and intend to file additiorakfgn and U.S. patent applications, as appropNg&cannot assure you as to:

. the degree and range of protection any patentsaffidtd against competitors with similar produc
. if and when patents will issue;
. whether or not others will obtain patents claimaggpects similar to those covered by our patenicgifuns.

If the USPTO upholds patents issued best or if the USPTO grants patent applicatioresifldy others, we may have

. obtain licenses or redesign our products or preasegsavoid infringemen
. stop using the subject matter claimed in thosenpsiter
. pay damage:

We may initiate, or others may bring agaus, litigation or administrative proceedingstied to intellectual property rights, including
proceedings before the USPTO. Any judgment adwerss in any litigation or other proceeding arisingonnection with a patent or patent
application could materially and adversely affeat business, financial condition and results ofrapiens. In addition, the costs of any such
proceeding may be substantial whether or not weaceessful.

Our success is also dependent upon ilig, gkowledge and experience, none of which ieptable, of our scientific and technical
personnel. To help protect our rights, we requiireraployees, consultants, advisors and collabosatoenter into confidentiality agreements
that prohibit the disclosure of confidential infation to anyone outside of our company and regligelosure and assignment to us of their
ideas, developments, discoveries and inventionss&lagreements may not provide adequate protdotionr trade secrets, know-how or
other proprietary information in the event of amauthorized use or disclosure or the lawful develept by others of such information, an
any of our proprietary information is disclosedr business will suffer because our revenues deppod our ability to license our technolc
and any such events would significantly impairvth&ie of such a license.

If we fail to retain our existing key personnel or fail to attract and retain additional key personnel, the development of our drug product
candidates and the expansion of our business will be delayed or stopped.

We are highly dependent upon our senanagement and scientific team, the loss of whaseéces might impede the achievement of
our development and commercial objectives. Comnipatfor key personnel with the experience that eauire is intense and is expected to
continue to increase. Our inability to attract aethin the required number of skilled and expegenmanagement, operational and scientific
personnel, will harm our business because we by these personnel for many critical functionswf business. In addition, we rely on
members of our scientific advisory
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board and consultants to assist us in formulatingesearch and development strategy. All of thenbers of the scientific advisory board
and all of our consultants are otherwise employatieach such member or consultant may have commiisnb@ other entities that may limit
their availability to us.

If users of our drug products are not reimbursed for use, future sales of our drug products will decline.

The lack of reimbursement for the usewfproduct candidates by hospitals, clinics, pasi@r doctors will harm our business.
Medicare, Medicaid, health maintenance organizatamd other third-party payers may not authorizetiberwise budget for the
reimbursement of our products. Governmental ard{barty payers are increasingly challenging thegsrcharged for medical products and
services. We cannot be sure that third-party payerdd view our product candidates as oef$ective, that reimbursement will be availabl
consumers or that reimbursement will be sufficterdllow our product candidates to be marketed conapetitive basis. Changes in
reimbursement policies, or attempts to containscwsthe health care industry could limit or redtreimbursement for our product candidates
and would materially and adversely affect our besi because future product sales would declinevanslould receive less product or
royalty revenue.

The Medicare prescription drug coverage legislation and future legislative or regulatory reform of the healthcare system may affect our
ability to sell our products profitably.

In the United States, there have beemnaber of legislative and regulatory proposals,dhtihe federal and state government levels, to
change the healthcare system in ways that couddtadiur ability to sell our products profitably aipproved. For example, the Medicare
Prescription Drug and Modernization Act of 2003 {M"), went into effect on January 1, 2006 and haarged the types of drugs covered
by Medicare, and the methodology used to deterthi@ag@rice for such drugs. Further federal and siedposals and healthcare reforms are
likely. Our business could be harmed by the MMA tly possible effect of this legislation on amouhtt private payors will pay and by
other healthcare reforms that may be enacted gtadan the future.

Thereisa substantial risk of product liability claimsin our business. If we are unableto obtain sufficient insurance, a product liability
claim against us could adversely affect our business.

We face an inherent risk of product ligpiexposure related to the testing of our prodrartdidates in human clinical trials and will
even greater risks upon any commercialization bgfumir product candidates. We have product ligbitisurance covering our clinical trials
in the amount of $7 million, which we currently iesle is adequate to cover any product liability@syre we may have. Clinical trial and
product liability insurance is becoming increasjngkpensive. As a result, we may be unable to olsadficient insurance or increase our
existing coverage at a reasonable cost to proteagainst losses that could have a material adefieset on our business. An individual may
bring a product liability claim against us if onkeour products or product candidates causes, @rimed to have caused, an injury or is found
to be unsuitable for consumer use. Any producilitglzlaim brought against us, with or without nitecould result in:

. liabilities that substantially exceed our produability insurance, which we would then be requiteghay from other sources, if
available;

. an increase of our product liability insurance saiethe inability to maintain insurance coveragéhie future on acceptable
terms, or at all

. withdrawal of clinical trial volunteers or patien

. damage to our reputation and the reputation opooducts, resulting in lower sale

. regulatory investigations that could require costigalls or product modification

. litigation costs; ani

. the diversion of managemrs attention from managing our busine
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If our computer systemsfail or our facility incurs damage, our business will suffer.

Our drug development activities dependhensecurity, integrity and performance of the pater systems supporting them, and the
failure of our computer systems could delay ougdiavelopment efforts. We currently store mostwfreclinical and clinical data at our
facility. Duplicate copies of most critical dataeatored offsite in a bank vault. Any significant degradatigrfailure of our computer syster
could cause us to inaccurately calculate or losalata. Loss of data could result in significaniagle in our drug development process and
any system failure could harm our business andabipess.

In addition, we store numerous cliniocadl astability samples at our facility that coulddsmaged if our facility incurred physical
damage or in the event of an extended power failMe have backup power systems in addition to baganerators to maintain power to all
critical functions, but any loss of these samplagdd result in significant delays in our drug demhent process.

If, because of our use of hazardous materials, we violate any environmental controls or regulations that apply to such materials, we may
incur substantial costs and expensesin our remediation efforts.

Our research and development involvestimrolled use of hazardous materials, chemiagadsvarious radioactive compounds. We are
subject to federal, state and local laws and reiguis governing the use, storage, handling anddedpof these materials and some waste
products. Accidental contamination or injury fronese materials could occur. In the event of andaatj we could be liable for any damages
that result and any liabilities could exceed osoreces. Compliance with environmental laws andlegpns could require us to incur
substantial unexpected costs, which would matgréaild adversely affect our results of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock
Our stock priceislikely to be highly volatile and the value of your investment could decline significantly.

The market prices for securities of bibteology companies in general have been highlyti®land may continue to be highly volatile
in the future. Moreover, our stock price has flated frequently, and these fluctuations are oftanrelated to our financial results. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 2005, the 52-varade of the market price of our stock was fron683o0 $18.64 per share. The
following factors, in addition to other risk facsodescribed in this section, may have a significapect on the market price of our common
stock:

. announcements of technological innovations or nevdycts by us or our competito

. developments or disputes concerning patents origtapy rights;

. status of new or existing licensing or collaboratagreement:

. we or our licensees achieving or failing to achidegelopment milestone

. publicity regarding actual or potential medicaluksrelating to products under development byrusus competitors
. publicity regarding certain public health concefmswhich we are or may be developing treatme

. regulatory developments in both the United Statekfareign countries

. public concern as to the safety of pharmaceuticzadycts;

. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;

. changes in financial estimates or recommendatigreeburities analyst:

. changes in the structure of healthcare paymen¢mgstincluding developments in price control leggish;
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. announcements by us or our competitors of sigmifieaquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint uees$ or capital commitmen

. additions or departures of key personnel or membieosir board of director:

. sales of substantial amounts of our stock by exdsttockholders, including officers or directc
. economic and other external factors or other disagir crises; an

. perioc-to-period fluctuations in our financial resul

Because stock ownership is concentrated, you and other investors will have limited influence on stockholder decisions.

As of December 31, 2005, our directoxgcative officers and some principal stockholders tneir affiliates beneficially owned
approximately 34.1% of our outstanding common stk common stock equivalents. As a result, thekitels, if acting together, are able
significantly influence matters requiring stockheddpproval, including the election of directorkisTconcentration of ownership may delay,
defer or prevent a change in our control.

We have anti-takeover provisionsin our corporate charter documents that may result in outcomes with which you do not agree.

Our board of directors has the authdotissue up to 3,178,500 shares of undesignatddrped stock and to determine the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions of thésees without further vote or action by our stodkkes. The rights of the holders of any
preferred stock that may be issued in the futurg attversely affect the rights of the holders of owon stock. The issuance of preferred s!
could make it more difficult for third parties toguire a majority of our outstanding voting stock.

In addition, our certificate of incorptican provides for staggered terms for the membéteeboard of directors and supermajority
approval of the removal of any member of the badrdirectors and prevents our stockholders fronmgdby written consent. Our certificate
also requires supermajority approval of any amemdrogthese provisions. These provisions and gihevisions of our by-laws and of
Delaware law applicable to us could delay or makeendifficult a merger, tender offer or proxy casttevolving us.

In June 2002, our board of directors &eld@ stockholder rights plan and, pursuant theirssaed preferred stock purchase rights
(“Rights™) to the holders of our common stock. TRights have certain anti-takeover effects. If taggd, the Rights would cause substantial
dilution to a person or group of persons who aegumore than 15% (19.9% for William W. FeatheripgilDirector who owned
approximately 9.95% as of December 31, 2005, buteslimore than 15% at the time the Rights wererpptace) of our common stock on
terms not approved by the board of directors.

We have never paid dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future.

We have never paid cash dividends orstagk. We currently intend to retain all futurergags, if any, for use in the operation of our
business. Accordingly, we do not anticipate payiagh dividends on our common stock in the forededature.

Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This discussion contains forward-lookstgtements, which are subject to risks and unceigai These forward-looking statements can
generally be identified by the use of words suctmaey,” “will,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “articipates,” “expects,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “potential,” the negative of these werar similar expressions. Statements that desoribéuture plans, strategies, intentions,
expectations, objectives, goals or prospects acefalward-looking statements. Discussions contgitihese forward-looking statements are
principally contained in “Business” and “Managengmiscussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiorddaResults of Operations”, as well as
any amendments we make to those sections in filiitisthe SEC. These forward-looking statementfuitie, but are not limited to,
statements about:
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. the initiation, timing, progress and results of pueclinical and clinical trials, research and depment programs

. the further preclinical or clinical development asaimmercialization of our product candidal

. the implementation of our business model, stratplgins for our business, product candidates arthtdogy;

. our ability to establish and maintain collaborasiavith biotechnology or pharmaceutical companiebsgovernmental agencies
or other third parties

. the scope of protection we are able to establishnaaintain for intellectual property rights coveyiour product candidates and
technology;

. our ability to operate our business without infiimggthe intellectual property rights of othe

. estimates of our expenses, future revenues, capdalrements and our needs for additional finagnc

. the timing or likelihood of regulatory filings amgbprovals

. our negotiations with the FDA for a special protcgssessmen

. our financial performance; ar

. competitive companies, technologies and our ingu

These statements reflect our current sietth respect to future events and are basedsmgsions and subject to risks and
uncertainties which may cause our actual resuttsppmance or achievements to be materially diffefeom any future results, performances
or achievements expressed or implied by the ford@olling statements. Given these uncertainties,sfmuld not place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements. We discuss métlyese risks in greater detail in “Risk Factowlso, these forward-looking statements
represent our estimates and assumptions only tag afate of this document.

You should read this discussion compyedeld with the understanding that our actual futeseilts may be materially different from
what we expect. We may not update these forwarkihgostatements, even though our situation may gaamthe future. We qualify all of
our forward-looking statements by these cautiostayements.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our administrative offices and principegearch facility are located in 50,150 square dé&tased office space in Riverchase
Industrial/Research Park in Birmingham, Alabamae Tgase runs through June 30, 2010 with an optideatse for an additional five years at
current market rates. We believe that our facdiiee adequate for our current operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock trades on the Nasda@ph&tMarket tier of The Nasdaq Stock MarketSM urttie symbol BCRX. The following
table sets forth the low and high bid prices of cammon stock as reported by Nasdaq for each quar905 and 2004:

2005 2004

Low High Low High
First quartel $ 432 $ 6.91 $ 6.24 $ 8.7¢
Second quarte 3.6¢ 5.2t 6.7 11.2¢
Third quartel 4.9C 10.4¢ 4.37 7.5€
Fourth quarte 9.7C 18.6¢ 4.65 6.94

The last sale price of the common stock on Marc2086 as reported by Nasdaq was $20.75 per share.
As of March 3, 2006, there were approximately 28&iérs of record of our common stock.
We have never paid cash dividends and does naiijzaittt paying cash dividends in the foreseeabledut
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data: 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Total revenue $ 152 $ 337 % 65 $ 0 $ 7,731
Research and development exper 23,64 18,86¢ 11,52: 15,47: 13,09:
Net loss (26,099 (21,109 (12,700 (16,929 (4,98¢)
Amounts per common shal

Basic and diluted net loss per sh $ (1.0 $ (1.00 $ ((72) $ (.9€6) $ (.28

Weighted average shares outstanding
thousands 25,72: 21,16t 17,70:¢ 17,64: 17,56(

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data: 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Cash, cash equivalents and secur $ 59,98t $ 28,70¢ $ 25,73. $ 36,16: $ 52,94:
Total asset 99,24¢ 32,46¢ 30,09¢ 41,30( 59,09¢
Long-term deferred revent 29,42¢ 30C 30C 30C 30C
Accumulated defici (151,867 (125,76¢) (104,66() (91,96() (75,03)
Total stockholdel' equity 58,44( 29,33 28,445 40,12¢ 56,81+

Note: In 2001, the license agreement for the developraedtcommercialization of the Company’s influenzaraeninidase inhibitors with
RWJPRI and Ortho-McNeil was terminated. At the dsteermination, all non-refundable license feed arlestone payments that had been
deferred, but not yet recognized were fully recagdias revenue in the current period.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contaiegtain statements of a forward-looking nature tielg to future events or the future
financial performance of BioCryst. Such statemangésonly predictions and the actual events or ressoiay differ materially from the resu
discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factbat could cause or contribute to such differanoelude those discussed below as well
as those discussed in other filings made by BiaGmith the Securities and Exchange Commission.

This discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read togettitir Item 1, Business and the financial
statements, including the notes thereto, containdtém 8 of this Form 10-K.

Overview

Since our inception in 1986, we have been engagessearch and development activities and orgadaiztefforts, including:

. identifying and licensing enzyme targe

. drug discovery

. structur-based design of drug candidal

. smal-scale synthesis of compouni

. conducting preclinical studies and clinical tri¢

. establishing collaborative relationships with thiakties for contract research related to the dgwveént of our drug candidates
to support manufacturing, clinical development agglilatory compliance

. establishing collaborative relationships with batteology or pharmaceutical companies and goverrahagencies or other
third parties for the further development and ptigdéicommercialization of our compounc

. recruiting our scientific and management persor

. establishing laboratory facilities; al

. raising capital

Our revenues have generally been limited to licéess, milestone payments, research and develodsesitand interest income.
Revenue is recognized in accordance with Staff Anting Bulletin No. 104Revenue Recognitidt'SAB No. 104”) and Emerging Issues
Task Force Issue 00-2Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveralfl&8TF Issue 00-21"). License fees, milestone papts, and
research and development fees are recognized @sugwhen the earnings process is complete anéweerto further continuing
performance obligations or we have completed timfopaance obligations under the terms of the age#mFees received under licensing
agreements that are related to future performarecdeferred and recognized as earned over an ¢stirpariod determined by management
based on the terms of the agreement and the psolicesed. For example, in the Roche and Mundiphdicenses agreements, we have
determined to defer the upfront payments over ¢heaining life of the patents which are 17 years Bhgears, respectively. In the event a
license agreement contains multiple deliverablesewaluate whether the deliverables are separatenabined units of accounting in
accordance with EITF Issue 00-21. Revisions temere or profit estimates as a result of changéseiestimated revenue period are
recognized prospectively.
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Milestone payments are recognized as revenue Uggoachievement of specified milestone events ifl{&)milestone is substantive in
nature and the achievement of the milestone waseagbnably assured at the inception of the agneeamel (2) the fees are non-refundable
and non-creditable. Any milestone payments reckpréor to satisfying these criteria are recordedieferred revenue.

Significant direct costs incurred upon enteringiatlicensing arrangement are deferred and chdogexpense in proportion to the
revenue recognized. Under the guidance of Emeigsues Task Force Issue 99-B@porting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus Blet a
an Agent{(“EITF Issue 99-19"), and Emerging Issues Task Edssue 01-14ncome Statement Characterization of Reimbursenieeteived
for “Out-of-Pocket” Expense§'EITF Issue 01-14"), reimbursements received foect out-of-pocket expenses related to researdh an
development costs are recorded as revenue in¢henim statement rather than as a reduction in egpens

Royalty revenue is recognized based on estimatesyafties earned during the applicable period ajdsted for differences between
the estimated and actual royalties in the followpegiod. If royalties can not be reasonably es@mharevenue is recognized upon receipt of
royalty statements from the licensee. We haveeustived any royalties from the sale of licensearptaceutical products.

It could be several years, if ever, before we veilognize significant revenue from royalties reedipursuant to our license agreem
or revenue directly from product sales. Future nenes, if any, are likely to fluctuate substantidftyn quarter to quarter.

We have incurred operating losses since our ineep®ur accumulated deficit at December 31, 2005 $161.9 million. We expect to
incur substantial expenditures relating to the tpraent of our current and future drug candidabeging the three years ended December
31, 2005, we spent 54.6% of our research and dewsot expenses on contract research and developmauating:

. payments to consultant

. funding of research at academic institutic

. toxicology studies on existing and potential drt

. manufacturing of our raw materials, drug substammdrug products

. large scale synthesis and formulation of compou

. preclinical studies

. engaging investigators to conduct clinical tri:

. hiring contract research organizations for regujasmd clinical functions; an
. using statisticians to evaluate the results oficdintrials.

The above expenditures for contract research anelaigment for our current and future drug candislat@l vary from quarter-to-
quarter depending on the status of our researclievelopment projects. For example, during thelthurarter of 2005, we initiated a Phase |
trial in healthy volunteers for our lead drug catade, Fodosine™, an inhibitor of purine nucleogiiesphorylase (“PNP”). Results from this
trial will be used to assist in facilitating thesitgn of a proposed Phase IIb pivotal clinical pawgiin patients with T-cell leukemia, using a
combination of intravenous and oral formulationg-otflosine™. In addition, during the third quad&R005, we initiated a Phase Il clinical
trial of Fodosine™ in patients with advanced, fliatane-refractory chronic lymphocytic leukemia (“Cl. and in the fourth quarter of 2005
we announced the initiation of a Phase /1l clihic&l of Fodosine™ in patients with B-cell ALL.sAthese trials progress and additional trials
are started in other indications, our costs faricél studies will increase significantly. In addit, the costs associated with the manufacturing
of Fodosine™, peramivir and BCX-4678 will increasewe scale up to the larger production runs reduior both clinical development and
additional toxicology studies required for eachtafse programs.

35



Changes in our existing and future research andldement and collaborative relationships also imiphact the status of our research
and development projects. For example, in Noverlbdb we entered into a license agreement with Rfmtthe worldwide development
and commercialization for our second PNP inhibiBEX-4208. In addition to an upfront payment plasaalvance payment for some
manufacturing we will perform, Roche will take ovdbe development and pay all costs associatedthigtprogram. In February 2006, we
licensed Fodosine™ to Mundipharma for the develapgraad commercialization of this drug in Europeiafand Australasia. In addition to
the upfront payment of $10 million, Mundipharmalyidy 50% of the clinical development costs we widur for Fodosine™bn existing an
planned clinical trials, but their portion shalltrexceed $10 million.

Although we may, in some cases, be able to cotiteotiming of development expenses, in part by lacatng or decelerating certain
of these costs, many of these costs will be inclimmespective of whether we are able to discoveg @¢andidates or obtain collaborative
partners for commercialization. As a result, waeya that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of ouwarfiial results are not necessarily
meaningful and should not be relied upon as arcatitin of future performance. If we fail to meeg ttesearch, clinical and financial
expectations of securities analysts and investioceuld have a material adverse effect on thegpofcour common stock.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2004

Collaborative and other research and developmeenres was $152,000 for the year compared to $387@®004 due to completion
of work performed under the NIH grant for hepat@isluring 2005. Also, there was an NIH grant du@20@4 for our TF/FVlla program that
totaled approximately $100,000, which was compl@&te2D04.

Research and development expenses for 2005 wer@4#2300, a 25.3% increase from 2004 expenses&86&,000, which is
directly related to the additional contract resbadtinical trial and toxicology expenses requifedthe further development of our lead drug
candidates during 2005 and an increase in perscost.

General and administrative expenses for 2005 we@8%,000, an increase of 14.4% over the 2004 esepen$3,221,000, primarily
due to an increase in legal fees related to ownthcannounced partnerships and an increase sopeel related expenses.

Interest income for 2005 was $1,078,000, a 66.4%ease compared to $648,000 in 2004. This incneasedue to a higher average
cash balance during 2005 and a more favorablecistteate environment as compared to 2004.

The net loss for the year ended December 31, 2@355826,099,000, or $1.01 per share, compared ¢b lass of $21,104,000, or $1
per share in 2004.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2003

Collaborative and other research and developmeeniges decreased in 2004 to $337,000 comparedb®) @B in 2003, primarily
due to a payment in 2003 from 3-Dimensional Phasutcals Inc. (“3DP”), a wholly-owned subsidiary ldhnson & Johnson, for certain
rights related to complement system inhibitors @igced during the term of our collaborative reskagreement. Our 2004 revenue was
entirely related to grants from the NIH for suppafrour HCV and TF/FVlla programs, while for 2008r@evenue included only $153,000
from the NIH.

Research and development expenses increased 63 828,868,000 for 2004 from $11,522,000 in 2003 iHtrease in expenses
during 2004 was directly related to contract amdichl costs associated with the development dfi lodtour lead drug candidates during 2(
These costs primarily consisted of manufacturiogicblogy, clinical development and regulatory aacharges, which were essential to the
continuing development of these programs.

General and administrative expenses increased 1 %$%,221,000 in 2004 from $2,812,000 in 2003ngrily due to an increase in
consulting and professional fees related to compéawith section 404 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002 and for the strategic developn
our lead drug candidate.

Interest income for 2004 was $648,000, a 33.9%edeer compared to $980,000 in 2003. This decreaseuweato a lower interest rate
environment in 2004.
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The net loss for the year ended December 31, 2@34%&1,104,000, or $1.00 per share, compared ¢b lass of $12,700,000, or $0
per share in 2003.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash expenditures have exceeded revenues singgception. Our operations have principally beerdfeshthrough public offerings
and private placements of equity and debt secsarifier example, during February 2005, we raised®2dlion (approximately $22.7 millio
net of expenses) through the sale of 4,350,00@&starour common stock and during December 2005awed $30.0 million (approximate
$29.9 million net of expenses) through a sale 222,829 shares of our common stock. Other sourcemding have included the following:

. equipment lease financin

. facility leases

. collaborative and other research and developmestatents (such as the Roche and Mundipharma ligg!
. research grants; al

. interest income

In addition, we have attempted to contain costsraddce cash flow requirements by renting scienéifuipment and facilities,
contracting with other parties to conduct certasearch and development and using consultantsxpéetto incur additional expenses,
potentially resulting in significant losses, as eamtinue to pursue our research and developmeinites, undertake additional preclinical
studies and clinical trials of compounds which hbagen or may be discovered and as we increaseahefacturing of our compounds for
clinical trials and toxicology studies. We also egpto incur substantial expenses related to timg fiprosecution, maintenance, defense and
enforcement of patent and other intellectual prgpelaims and additional regulatory costs as oimiadl products advance through later
stages of development.

We invest our excess cash principally in U.S. miatie securities from a diversified portfolio oftitutions with strong credit ratings
and in U.S. government and agency bills and natas by policy, limit the amount of credit exposateany one institution. These investme
are generally not collateralized and mature withiee years. We have not realized any losses frmin sivestments. In addition, at Decen
31, 2005, approximately $21.9 million was investethe Merrill Lynch Premier Institutional Fundngoney market mutual fund that invests
in near cash securities with weighted average rtigsiof less than 90 days. The Merrill Lynch Preminstitutional Fund is not insured.

We have financed some of our equipment purchagksedse lines of credit. In July 2000, we reneagetl our lease for our current
facilities, which will expire on June 30, 2010. \Wave an option to renew the lease for an additifimalyears at the current market rate in
effect on June 30, 2010 and a one-time optionrtoiteate the lease on June 30, 2008 for a termimdgie of approximately $124,000. The
lease, as amended effective December 1, 2005ritiection of 7,200 square feet, requires us torpagthly rent starting at $36,855 per
month in December 2005 and escalating annuallyminémum of $41,481 per month in the final yeaygbur pro rata share of operating
expenses and real estate taxes in excess of baisargeunts. As part of the lease, we have deposité®. Treasury security in escrow for
payment of rent and performance of other obligatigpecified in the lease. This pledged amountrisatly $196,000, which can be
decreased by $65,000 annually throughout the tétimedease. Currently, we have approximately 3 &f@are feet being subleased, which
can be terminated with 30 days written notice.

We have not incurred any significant charges rdladenew equipment or building renovations sinc@128nd currently have no plans
for any significant renovations, but our purchaskadditional equipment during 2006 could exceedrfifion.

At December 31, 2005, we had long-term operatingdenbligations, which provide for aggregate mimmpayments of $533,904 in
2006, $486,119 in 2007 and $496,834 in 2008. Thbkgations include the future rental of our opergfacility.
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We plan to finance our needs principally from tbkofwing:

. our existing capital resources and interest eaometthat capital
. payments under collaborative and licensing agreésmeith corporate partners; a
. lease or loan financing and future public or prévihancing.

We believe that our currently available funds Wil sufficient to fund our operations at least tigtp@008. However, this is a forward
looking statement, and there may be changes thaltveonsume available resources significantly befarch time. Our long-term capital
requirements and the adequacy of our availablesfwvill depend upon many factors, including:

. the progress and magnitude of our research, degpaery and development prograt

. changes in existing collaborative relationsh

. our ability to establish additional collaborativeationships with academic institutions, biotecloggl or pharmaceutical
companies and governmental agencies or other pliriks;

. the extent to which our collaborators, includinggamental agencies will share in the costs astatiaith the development
our programs or run the development programs thigess:

. our ability to negotiate favorable development aratketing strategic alliances for our drug candid;

. the scope and results of preclinical studies aimicall trials to identify drug candidate

. the scope of manufacturing of our drug candidaiesipport our preclinical research and clinicall$:i

. the scope of validation for the manufacturing of drug substance and drug products required foréuiDA filings;

. competitive and technological advanc

. the time and costs involved in obtaining regulat@pprovals

. the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining and enforcing patent clair

. our dependence on others for development and cocmtization of our product candidates; ¢

. successful commercialization of our products cdestswith our licensing strateg

To date, we have financed our operations primérilgn sale of our equity securities and, to a lesséent, revenues from
collaborations and interest. In 2005, our operaticonsumed approximately $2.0 million per monthr @itial projection for 2006 is that our
average burn rate for 2006 will be approximatelys$8illion per month. We expect that our monthlgltaised by operations will continue to
increase for the next couple of years as our @dinpcograms are expanded. We are planning to bePinase 1lb pivotal trial with Fodosine™
in 2006 in T-cell leukemia and are in the earlyge&of clinical trials in several other indicatiomsh Fodosine™. As these trials increase in
size and patient enrollment increases, our codtsnerease. In addition, we expect our neuramis@mhibitor, peramivir, to be in clinical
trials in the first quarter of 2006 and our HCV glieandidate, BCX-4678 to be in clinical trials digri2006. These additional trials and the
related manufacturing, personnel resources aniddestquired to support these studies will consgigaificant capital resources and will
increase our expenses and our net loss.
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This monthly burn rate could vary significantly éepling on many factors, including our ability tiseaadditional capital, the
development progress of our existing partnerstop®@r drug candidates, the amount of funding eistéance we receive from governmental
agencies or other new partnerships with third parfior the development of our drug candidates iregg and for peramivir specifically, the
progress and results of our current and proposeital trials for Fodosine™, peramivir and BCX-461i8e progress made in the
manufacturing of our products and the progressfauoother programs.

As of December 31, 2005, we had $60.0 million ishga&ash equivalents and securities. This inclagesoximately $30 million raised
in December 2005 through a sale of equity, whiadvigled additional resources to continue the devekaqt of our existing programs, while
prudently maintaining our cash position. In additizve established a collaborative relationship Wtithe in November 2005 and a
collaborative relationship with Mundipharma in Fedry 2006, which provided additional cash in 2008, of third party license fees, totaling
approximately $32 million.

The collaboration with Roche for the worldwide dieyenent and commercialization of BCX-4208 providedupfront payment plus
an advance payment for specific manufacturing wepeirform. This initial $30 million was recorded a receivable on our balance sheet at
December 31, 2005 and was received in January Za@ithe will take over the development and pay@dts associated with this program.
The agreement also provides for future event paysremd royalties to be made by Roche upon the aeimient of certain clinical, regulatory
and sales events.

In February 2006, we licensed Fodosingd"undipharma for the development and commera@ébn of this drug in Europe, Asia a
Australasia. In addition to the upfront paymen$#6 million, Mundipharma will pay 50% of the climicdevelopment costs we will incur for
Fodosine™ on existing and planned clinical triblg, their portion shall not exceed $10 million.adddition, Mundipharma will conduct
additional clinical trials at their own cost upaanaximum of $15 million. The agreement also presitbr future event payments and roya
to be made by Mundipharma upon the achievemenrgntdia clinical, regulatory and sales events.

Due to the nature of the potential milestones inamllaborations, it is difficult to predict if anghen particular milestones will be
achieved by us or our collaborators. However, wgehio reach at least one milestone in each ofdhaborations during 2006, which would
provide additional cash upon the achievement ospeeific milestone reached. All future event pagtae@re non-refundable under our
current collaborations, net of sublicense paymertd,would be fully available to offset our progtturn rate.

We will be required to raise additional capitactimplete the development and commercializationuofoarrent product candidates.
Additional funding, whether through additional satd securities or collaborative or other arrangetsi&ith corporate partners or from other
sources, may not be available when needed or orstacceptable to us. The issuance of preferredromon stock or convertible securities,
with terms and prices significantly more favorathlan those of the currently outstanding commonkstoauld have the effect of diluting or
adversely affecting the holdings or rights of oxiséng stockholders. In addition, collaborativesaigements may require us to transfer ce
material rights to such corporate partners. Insigffit funds may require us to delay, scale-baaiorinate certain of our research and
development programs.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do not pari@pn transactions that generate relationships wiconsolidated entities or financ
partnerships, such as entities often referred girastured finance or special purpose entitie®ES’), which would have been established
the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet agements or other contractually narrow or limitedpgmses. As of December 31, 2005, we are
not involved in any material unconsolidated SPBféibalance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

In the table below, we set forth our enforceable l@gally binding obligations and future commitneeahd obligations related to all
contracts that we are likely to continue regardtégbie fact that they are cancelable as of Dece®be2005. Some of the amounts we
include in this table are based on managemeniimatss and assumptions about these obligationsidimg their duration, the possibility of
renewal, anticipated actions by third parties, atiér factors. Because these estimates and assusptie necessarily subjective, the
obligations we will actually pay in future period®y vary from those reflected in the table.
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Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating Lease Obligatiol $ 2,25856! $ 533,90: $ 982,95: $ 741,71 —
Purchase Obligations ( 9,479,97 8,379,97 400,00( 400,00( 300,00(
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on
BioCryst's Balance Sheet Under GA/ 300,00( — — — 300,00(
Total $ 12,03854 $ 8,913,88. $ 1,382,95. $ 1,141,71. $ 600,00(

(1) Purchase obligations include commitments relatedimnical development, manufacturing and reseaprations and other significant
purchase commitment

In addition to the above, we have coneditio make potential future “sublicense” paymeaotthird-parties as part of in-licensing and
development programs. Payments under these agréesgesrerally become due and payable only upon aement of certain developmental,
regulatory and/or commercial milestones. Becausathievement of these milestones is neither ptebady reasonably estimable, such
contingencies have not been recorded on our bakirest.

Critical Accounting Policies

We have established various accountirigipe that govern the application of accountinmp@iples generally accepted in the United
States, which were utilized in the preparationwffinancial statements. Certain accounting padi¢giolve significant judgments and
assumptions by management that have a materiatiropathe carrying value of certain assets andlii@ls; management considers such
accounting policies to be critical accounting pekc The judgments and assumptions used by managemnecbased on historical experience
and other factors, which are believed to be reddenader the circumstances. Because of the nafuhe judgments and assumptions made
by management, actual results could differ frons¢hi@gdgments and estimates, which could have ariaatapact on the carrying values of
assets and liabilities and the results of operation

While our significant accounting policiase more fully described in Note 1 to our finahstatements included later in this Form 10-K,
we believe that the following accounting policies the most critical to aid you in fully understargiand evaluating our reported financial
results and affect the more significant judgments @stimates that we use in the preparation ofinancial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenues have generally been lintitditense fees, milestone payments, research evelabment fees, and interest income.
Revenue is recognized in accordance with Staff Antag Bulletin No. 104Revenue RecognitidhSAB No. 104”) and Emerging Issues
Task Force Issue 00-2Regvenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveralfl&TF Issue 00-21"). License fees, milestone papts, and
research and development fees are recognized esugwhen the earnings process is complete andweerto further continuing
performance obligations or we have completed thfopaance obligations under the terms of the agm#mFees received under licensing
agreements that are related to future performarecdeferred and recognized as earned over an g¢stirpariod determined by management
based on the terms of the agreement and the psolicesed. For example, in the Roche and Mundiphdicenses agreements, we have
determined to defer the upfront payments over ¢ngaining life of the patents which are 17 years Bhgears, respectively. In the event a
license agreement contains multiple deliverablesewaluate whether the deliverables are separatenabined units of accounting in
accordance with EITF Issue 00-21. Revisions temere or profit estimates as a result of changéseiestimated revenue period are
recognized prospectively.
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Milestone payments are recognized asngyepon the achievement of specified milestonatevie(1) the milestone is substantive in
nature and the achievement of the milestone waseagbnably assured at the inception of the agneeamel (2) the fees are non-refundable
and non-creditable. Any milestone payments reckpréor to satisfying these criteria are recordedieferred revenue.

Significant direct costs incurred upomeeimg into a licensing arrangement are deferreticdrarged to expense in proportion to the
revenue recognized. Under the guidance of Emeigsues Task Force Issue 99-B@porting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus Blet a
an Agent(“EITF Issue 99-19"), and Emerging Issues Task Edssue 01-14ncome Statement Characterization of Reimbursenieeteived
for “Out-of-Pocket” Expense§'EITF Issue 01-14"), reimbursements received foect out-of-pocket expenses related to researdh an
development costs are recorded as revenue in¢henim statement rather than as a reduction in egpens

Royalty revenue is recognized based timates of royalties earned during the applicaleléqal and adjusted for differences between
the estimated and actual royalties in the followpegiod. If royalties can not be reasonably es@mharevenue is recognized upon receipt of
royalty statements from the licensee.

Research and Development Expenses

Major components of R&D expenses corfigtersonnel costs, including salaries and benafisufacturing costs, clinical, regulatc
and toxicology services performed by contract redearganizations (CRO’s), materials and supph@sl overhead allocations consisting of
various administrative and facilities related cog¥e charge these costs to expense when incuiwedistent with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 2ccounting for Research and Development Co$tgese costs are a significant component of R&peases.
Most of our manufacturing and our clinical and firécal studies are performed by third-party CROAe accrue costs for studies performed
by CRO'’s over the service periods specified indbitracts and adjust our estimates, if requiresetdaipon our on-going review of the level
of services actually performed by the CRO. We egpdioth our internal and external research anda@went costs as incurred. We expect
our research and development expense to increase esntinue to develop our drug candidates.

Additionally, we have license agreemaeith third parties, such as AECOM/IRL that requinaintenance fees or fees related to
sublicense agreements. These fees are generaipsag as incurred unless they are related to regehat have been deferred in which case
the expenses will be deferred and recognized dnverdlated revenue recognition period.

Accrued Expenses

As part of the process of preparing friahstatements, we are required to estimate ad@ypenses. This process involves reviewing
open contracts and purchase orders, communicaithgowr applicable personnel to identify servideatthave been performed on our behalf
and estimating the level of service performed &rdassociated cost incurred for the service whehawe not yet been invoiced or otherwise
notified of actual cost. The majority of our seevigroviders invoice us monthly in arrears for seggiperformed. We make estimates of our
accrued expenses as of each balance sheet datefinancial statements based on facts and ciramsts known to us. We periodically
confirm the accuracy of our estimates with the iserproviders and make adjustments if necessarylai® we have not adjusted our estin
at any particular balance sheet date in any matanaunt. Examples of estimated accrued expensasiie

. fees paid to contract research organizations imection with preclinical and toxicology studies attidical trials;

. fees paid to investigative sites in connection withical trials;

. fees paid to contract manufacturers in connectiith the production of our raw materials, drug sahse and drug products;
and

. professional service fee
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We base our expenses related to cliizds on our estimates of the services receivetedforts expended pursuant to contracts with
multiple research institutions and clinical resbasoganizations that conduct and manage clinicabkton our behalf. The financial terms of
these agreements are subject to negotiation, vany ¢ontract to contract and may result in unevayment flows. Payments under some of
these contracts depend on factors such as thessificcenroliment of patients and the completioclwfical trial milestones. In accruing
service fees, we estimate the time period over veé&vices will be performed and the level of @fforbe expended in each period. If the
actual timing of the performance of services orléwel of effort varies from our estimate, we veitljust the accrual accordingly. If we do not
identify costs that we have begun to incur or ifumelerestimate or overestimate the level of sesviggformed or the costs of these services,
our actual expenses could differ from our estimates

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensatiatetuAccounting Principles Board Opinion No. 28counting for Stock Issued to
Employee("APB No. 25”). Under APB No. 25, our stock optiand employee stock purchase plans qualify as mopensatory plans.
Under Financial Accounting Standards Board Integtien No. 44 Accounting for Certain Transactions involving St@kmpensation, an
Interpretation of APB No. 2(“FIN No. 44"), outside directors are consideredpdogees for purposes of applying APB No. 25, ifitlaee
elected by the shareholders. Consequently, no ensagion expense for employees and directors égrézed unless there has been a
modification to their grants as was the case ferdinectors in May 2004, resulting in an additioredognized expense of $457,000 during
2004. Stock issued to non-employees is compensatmhcompensation expense is recognized unden&tatef Financial Accounting
Standards No. 122\ccounting for Stock-Based Compensati@tatement No. 123"), as amended by Statemeninafri€ial Accounting
Standards No. 14&ccounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transaiwh Disclosurg“Statement No. 148”).

In December 2004, the Financial Accoun8tandards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of fiéfed Accounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004)Share-Based PaymefiStatement No. 123R"), which is a revision of 8taent No. 123, supersedes APB No. 25, and amend
Statement No. 95. Generally, the approach in Seéido. 123R is similar to the approach descrilbeStatement No. 123. However,
Statement No. 123R requires all share-based pagn@employees, including grants of stock optidode recognized in the income
statement based on their fair values. Pro formaakiare is no longer an alternative.

In March 2005, the Securities and Exclea@gmmission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin N07 IShare-Based Paymenivhich
provided further clarification on the implementatiof Statement No. 123R. Statement No. 123R orllginaquired adoption no later than
July 1, 2005. In April 2005, the Securities and liaiege Commission issued a release that amendsernimdiance dates for Statement No.
123R. Under the release, we were required to, ahdgply Statement No. 123R as of January 1, 2006.

7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK.

The primary objective of our investmeatidties is to preserve principal while maximizittge income we receive from our investme
without significantly increasing our risk. We irste2xcess cash principally in U.S. marketable s&esifrom a diversified portfolio of
institutions with strong credit ratings and in UgBvernment and agency bills and notes, and byydlmit the amount of credit exposure at
any one institution. Some of the securities we ghwe may have market risk. This means that a chamgrevailing interest rates may cause
the principal amount of the investment to fluctudte minimize this risk, we schedule our investnseinthave maturities that coincide with
our expected cash flow needs, thus avoiding thd teeedeem an investment prior to its maturityedétccordingly, we believe we have no
material exposure to interest rate risk arisingfimur investments. Therefore, no quantitative tabdisclosure is provided.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2005 2004
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 29,156,82 $ 8,838,46.
Securities hel-to-maturity 21,103,57 14,334,63
Receivable from collaboratic 30,000,00 —
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 839,66 699,28:
Total current asse 81,100,06 23,872,37
Securities hel-to-maturity 9,727,50 5,530,45:
Furniture and equipment, n 2,407,95 2,817,15
Patents and licenses, net of accumulated amodizafi$13,076 in 2005 and $3,934 in 2( 187,63! 248,58t
Deferred collaboration expen 5,825,24. —
Total asset $ 99,248,339 $  32,468,57
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payabl $ 8,812,98' $ 1,970,44.
Accrued expense 1,252,01! 563,96
Accrued vacatiol 442 97" 299,95!
Deferred revenu 873,78t —
Total current liabilities 11,381,76 2,834,35!
Deferred revenu 29,426,21 300,00t
Stockholder equity:
Preferred stock: shares authori:- 5,000,00C
Series A Convertible Preferred stock, $.01 pareadinares authorized - 1,800,000; shares
issued and outstandir- none
Series B Junior Participating Preferred stock, $.08r value; shares authorized - 45,000;
shares issued and outstand- none
Common stock, $.01 par value; shares authoriz£8,000,000; shares issued and outstanding -
28,813,53:-2005; 21,758,28- 2004 288,13! 217,58
Additional paic-in capital 210,014,94 154,880,52
Accumulated defici (151,862,66) (125,763,89)
Total stockholdel' equity 58,440,41 29,334,21
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 9924839 $  32,468,57

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Revenues:

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Collaborative and other research and developi

Expenses:
Research and developmt
General and administratiy
Total expense

Loss from operation
Interest and other incon

Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per common sl

Weighted average shares outstant

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

$ 151,86" $ 336,90: $ 653,25t
23,642,37 18,868,11 11,521,98
3,686,32: 3,220,65! 2,811,60!
27,328,70 22,088,76 14,333,58
(27,176,83) (21,751,86) (13,680,33)
1,078,06! 647,74¢ 980,24

$ (26,098,76) $ (21,104,12) $ (12,700,08)

$ (1.01) $ (1.00) $ (72)
25,721,03 21,165,31 17,703,44




STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 31, 20C

Exercise of stock options, 186,228 shares
Employee stock purchase plan sales, 27,964 s
Stocl-based compensation expel

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

Sale of common stock, 3,571,667 sh:

Exercise of stock options, 283,636 shares
Employee stock purchase plan sales, 31,695 s
Stocl-based compensation expel

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

Sale of common stock, 6,578,829 sh:

Exercise of stock options, 450,717 shares
Employee stock purchase plan sales, 25,700 s
Stocl-based compensation expel

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Additional Accumulated Total Stock-
Common Stock Paid-in Capital Deficit holders’ Equity

$ 176,57: $ 131,910,993 $ (91,959,69) $ 40,127,81
1,862 877,19¢ — 879,06(

28C 20,39¢ — 20,67¢

— 119,67¢ — 119,67¢
- - (12,700,08) (12,700,08)

178,711 132,928,220 (104,659,77) 28,447,14

35,717 20,244,13 — 20,279,85

2,83¢ 1,077,50! — 1,080,33!

317 118,26( — 118,57

— 512,42° — 512,42
— — (21,104,12) (21,104,12)

217,58: 154,880,52 (125,763,89) 29,334,21

65,78¢ 52,498,06 — 52,563,85

4,507 2,473,39! — 2,477,90:

257 136,56¢ — 136,82:

— 26,39: — 26,39:
— — (26,098,76) (26,098,76)

$ 288,13! $ 210,014,994 $ (151,862,66) $ 58,440,41
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities

Depreciation and amortization of furniture and equént

Impairment of furniture and equipme

Amortization of patents and licens

Impairment of patents and licens

Stocl-based compensation expel
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Receivable from collaboratic

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Deferred collaboration expen

Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Accrued vacatiol

Deferred revenu

Net cash used in operating activitie
Investing activities:

Acquisitions of furniture and equipme
Purchases of patents and licen
Purchases of marketable securi
Maturities of marketable securiti

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activitie
Financing activities:

Sale of common stock, net of issuance ¢
Exercise of stock optior

Employee stock purchase plan st

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv:
Cash and equivalents at beginning of y

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
$ (26,09876) $ (21,104,12) $ (12,700,08)
854,26 955,54 1,101,31
52,21¢ 10,92: —
10,29¢ 2,97¢ 202
101,43 8,33¢ —
26,39: 512,42 119,67¢
(30,000,00) — —
(140,37¢) (23,37)) (193,28)
(5,825,24) — —
6,842,54: 1,330,09: 384,31
688,05° 96,27 24,16¢
143,02: 59,58: 67,35
30,000,00 — —
(23,346,15) (18,151,33) (11,196,34)
(497,28 (275,919 (51,729
(50,782 (80,44%) (82,14()
(29,695,35) (18,879,23) (13,187,90)
18,729,36 16,398,62 21,690,77
(11,514,05) (2,836,96) 8,369,00!
52,563,85 20,279,85 —
2,477,90; 1,080,33 879,06(
136,82: 118,57 20,67¢
55,178,57 21,478,76 899,73
20,318,36 490,46: (1,927,59)
8,838,46. 8,348,00: 10,275,60
$ 2915682 $ 8,838,446 8,348,00:




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Accounting Policies
The Company

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delan@rporation (the “Company”), is a biotechnologynpany that designs, optimizes, and
develops novel drugs that block key enzymes inwblnecancer, cardiovascular diseases, autoimmusasiés, and viral infections. The
Company integrates the necessary disciplines dddpo crystallography, medicinal chemistry, and poaer modeling to effectively use
structure-based drug design to discover and destagl molecule pharmaceuticals. The Company txaisresearch projects in different
stages of development from early discovery to agyporg Phase Il trial of the Company’s most advaraed candidate, Fodosine™. While
the prospects for a project may increase as thegiradvances to the next stage of developmentjaqt can be terminated at any stage of
development. Until the Company generates reverroes éither a research project or an approved piothe Company’s ability to continue
research projects is dependent upon its abilitaige funds through the sale of equity securitiehimugh collaborative arrangements with
government agencies or third-party partners.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company generally considers cashvetprits to be all cash held in money market acsboninvestments in debt instruments with
maturities of three months or less at the timewtpase in accordance with Statement of FinanaabAnting Standards No. 95tatement ¢
Cash Flowg“Statement No. 95”).

Securities Held-to-Maturity

The Company is required to classify siiesras held-to-maturity, available-for-sale ading. The appropriateness of each
classification is reassessed at each reporting Aatef December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Comparsgified all securities as held-toaturity.
The only dispositions of securities classified aklio-maturity related to actual maturities orwg#iees called prior to their maturity. At
December 31, 2005 securities held-to-maturity tegeio $30,831,073 consisted entirely of U.S. Teeasind Agency securities carried at
amortized cost. At December 31, 2004, securitédd-to-maturity totaling $19,865,083 consisted o8 UTreasury and Agency securities
carried at amortized cost of $17,775,804 and @eatis of deposit from financial institutions of, $29,279. At December 31, 2005, all of the
non-current portions of securities held-to-matusitg U.S. Agency securities that mature in 2002 @$timated fair value of all held-to-
maturity securities at December 31, 2005 and 2#®hectively, was approximately $30,737,609 and®19365. The Company has
deposited a U.S. Treasury security of $196,00Ganev for the payment of rent and performance béobbligations specified in its lease
dated July 12, 2000 (see Note 5). The amount depads escrow for the lease decreases $65,000adlgribroughout the term of the lease.

Fair value of held-to-maturity investmepturities are based on independent quoted myaikes. While these securities have an
unrealized loss position at December 31, 2005, gemant does not believe the loss represents antbiae-temporary impairment. The
Company has the ability and the intent to holdsbeurities until maturity, at which time the cobthe investments will be recovered. These
unrealized losses are mainly attributed to chamgegerest rates and are individually less thaa parcent of their respective amortized cost.

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are recordedst ©epreciation is computed using the straigig-fhethod with estimated useful lives of five
and seven years. Laboratory equipment, office enqeiq, leased equipment and software are depreaatxd life of five years. Furniture
and fixtures are depreciated over a life of seveary. Leasehold improvements are amortized ovérabgmated useful lives or the remain
lease term, whichever is lesser. The Company piegtigl reviews its furniture and equipment for inmp@ent in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 14¢counting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lonigdd Asset§'Statement No. 144"}o determin:
any impairment that needs to be recognized.

Patents and Licenses

Patents and licenses are recorded abodsamortized on a straight-line basis over thsfimated useful lives or 20 years, whichever is
lesser. The Company periodically reviews its patamid licenses for impairment in accordance wittieédtent No. 144 to determine any
impairment that needs to be recognized. During20t 2004, the Company identified certain patantklicenses that no longer met its
strategic objectives, which were determined to fiecoverable and for which the Company had norsdtare future uses. Accordingly, the
Company recorded impairment losses for such pagemdicenses totaling $101,437 and $8,339 foytes ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. These impairment losses ataded in general and administrative expensesdrsthitements of operations.

Research and Development Expenses

Major components of research and devetoriraxpenses consist of personnel costs, inclushitagies and benefits, clinical, regulatory
and toxicology services performed by contract redearganizations (CR's), materials and supplies, and overhead allocationsisting o



various administrative and facilities related co$tse Company charges clinical and preclinical gtookts to expense when incurred,
consistent with Statement of Financial Accountitgn8ards No. 2Accounting for Research and Development Co$teese costs are a
significant component of R&D expenses. Most of @mpany’s manufacturing and clinical and prechihgtudies are performed by third-
party CRO’s. The Company accrues costs for stysBeformed by CRO'’s over the service periods speatiiin the contracts and adjusts
estimates, if required, based upon the Companygaimg review of the level of services actuallyfpemed by the CRO.
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Accrued Expenses

As part of the process of preparing feiahstatements, we are required to estimate adaxpenses. This process involves reviewing
open contracts and purchase orders, communicaithgowr applicable personnel to identify servidestthave been performed on our behalf
and estimating the level of service performed &redassociated cost incurred for the service whehawe not yet been invoiced or otherwise
notified of actual cost. The majority of our seevigroviders invoice us monthly in arrears for seggiperformed. We make estimates of our
accrued expenses as of each balance sheet datefinancial statements based on facts and ciramass known to us. We periodically
confirm the accuracy of our estimates with the iserproviders and make adjustments if necessarglai® we have not adjusted our estin
at any particular balance sheet date in any matmaunt. Examples of estimated accrued expensksdiet

. fees paid to contract research organizations imection with preclinical and toxicology studies attidical trials;

. fees paid to investigative sites in connection withical trials;

. fees paid to contract manufacturers in connectibh tie production of our raw materials, drug sahse and drug products;
and

. professional service fee

We base our expenses related to clitizd$ on our estimates of the services receivetiedforts expended pursuant to contracts with
multiple research institutions and clinical res@ascganizations that conduct and manage clinicabkton our behalf. The financial terms of
these agreements are subject to negotiation, vamy ¢ontract to contract and may result in unevayment flows. Payments under some of
these contracts depend on factors such as thessfigicenrollment of patients and the completiorlofical trial milestones. In accruing
service fees, we estimate the time period over whervices will be performed and the level of dfforbe expended in each period. If the
actual timing of the performance of services orléwel of effort varies from our estimate, we vaitljust the accrual accordingly. If we do not
identify costs that we have begun to incur or ifumelerestimate or overestimate the level of sesviggformed or the costs of these services,
our actual expenses could differ from our estimates

Income Taxes

The liability method is used in accougtfor income taxes in accordance with Statemefimdncial Accounting Standards No. 109,
Accounting for Income Tax(“Statement No. 109”). Under this method, defem@edassets and liabilities are determined baseatifterences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assetdiabilities and are measured using the endatethtes and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenues have generallp begted to license fees, milestone payments,aeseand development fees, and interest
income. Revenue is recognized in accordance wiff Sccounting Bulletin No. 104Revenue RecognitidhSAB No. 104”") and Emerging
Issues Task Force Issue 00-REvenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveralf&$TF Issue 00-21"). License fees, future eveayments,
and research and development fees are recognizegtexsue when the earnings process is completéhandompany has no further
continuing performance obligations or the Compaay tompleted the performance obligations undetettmes of the agreement. Fees
received under licensing agreements that are tetatiuture performance are deferred and recogragegarned over an estimated period
determined by management. In the event a licegigement contains multiple deliverables, the Commamaluates whether the deliverables
are separate or combined units of accounting iordemce with EITF Issue 00-21. Revisions to reeemuprofit estimates as a result of
changes in the estimated revenue period are rexegjprospectively.

Future event payments are recognizedanue upon the achievement of specified evelits the event is substantive in nature and
the achievement of the event was not reasonablyessit the inception of the agreement and (2jelee are non-refundable and non-
creditable. Any event payments received priortiisfying these criteria are recorded as deferegdnue.

Significant direct costs incurred upomeeimg into a licensing arrangement are deferreticdrarged to expense in proportion to the
revenue recognized. Under the guidance of Emeigsues Task Force Issue 99-Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus Blet a
an Agen(“EITF Issue 99-19”), and Emerging Issues Task Edssue 01-14ncome Statement Characterization of Reimbursenieateived
for “Out-of-Pocket” Expense§'EITF Issue 01-14"), reimbursements received foect out-of-pocket expenses related to researdh an
development costs are recorded as revenue indbenim statement rather than as a reduction in egpens
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Royalty revenue is recognized based timates of royalties earned during the applicaleléqal and adjusted for differences between
the estimated and actual royalties in the followpegiod. If royalties can not be reasonably esi@mharevenue is recognized upon receipt of
royalty statements from the licensee. The Compesynot received any royalties from the sale efiged pharmaceutical products.

Net Loss Per Share

The Company computes net loss per shaaedordance with Statement of Financial Accoun8tandards No. 12&arnings Per
Share. Net loss per share is based upon the weighte@d@eeumber of common shares outstanding durinpgehied. Diluted loss per share
is equivalent to basic net loss per share foreiouls presented herein because common equivélarésfrom unexercised stock options and
common shares expected to be issued under the @giaanployee stock purchase plan were anti-didutiv

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based emsgtion under Accounting Principles Board Opirlim 25,Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employee$'APB No. 25”"). Under APB No. 25, the Company’sakt option and employee stock purchase plans guadif
noncompensatory plans. Under Financial Accouritemmdards Board Interpretation No. Adcounting for Certain Transactions involving
Stock Compensation, an Interpretation of APB No(“EBN No. 44"), outside directors are consideredptogees for purposes of applying
APB No. 25, if they are elected by the sharehold€snsequently, no compensation expense for erapgnd directors is recognized unless
there has been a modification to their grants astiva case for the directors in May 2004, resulitingn additional recognized expense of
$457,000 during 2004. Stock issued to non-emploigeesmpensatory and compensation expense is reeshunder Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 128¢ccounting for Stock-Based Compensafi8tatement No. 123”), as amended by Statemenirafri€ial
Accounting Standards No. 148ccounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transdiuh Disclosurg“Statement No. 148").

The following table illustrates the payrha effect on net loss and net loss per shar¢hea@ompany applied the fair value recognition
provisions of Statement No. 123 for the years erdecember 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003. See Notethdaissumptions used to compute the
pro forma amounts.

2005 2004 2003
Net loss as reporte $ (26,098,76) $ (21,104,12) $ (12,700,08)
Add stock-based employee compensation expensealittin reported

net loss 26,39: 512,42 119,67¢
Deduct total stock-based employee compensatiomasepgetermined

under Statement No. 1: (1,779,99) (2,260,55) (2,178,78)
Pro forma net los $ (27,852,36) $ (22,852,24) $ (14,759,18)
Amounts per common shal
Net loss per share, as repor $ (1.00) $ (1.00) $ (.72)
Pro forma net loss per she $ (1.0¢) $ (.08 $ (.89

In December 2004, the Financial Accountandards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of iéfed Accounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004)Share-Based PaymefiStatement No. 123R"), which is a revision of 8taent No. 123, supersedes APB No. 25, and amend
Statement No. 95. Generally, the approach in Setéido. 123R is similar to the approach descrilbeStatement No. 123. However,
Statement No. 123R requires all share-based pagn@employees, including grants of stock optidode recognized in the income
statement based on their fair values. Pro formaakiare is no longer an alternative.

In March 2005, the Securities and Exclea@gmmission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin N07 IShare-Based Paymenivhich
provided further clarification on the implementatiof Statement No. 123R. Statement No. 123R orllginaquired adoption no later than
July 1, 2005. In April 2005, the Securities and liaiege Commission issued a release that amendsenimdiance dates for Statement No.
123R. Under the release, the Company was requiradd did apply Statement No. 123R as of Januaz9ds.
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Statement No. 123R permits public comgsutd adopt its requirements using one of two nutha “modified prospectivahethod or
“modified retrospective” method. Both methods amailar, except that the modified retrospective neetipermits entities to restate, based on
the amounts previously recognized under StatemenflRB for purposes of pro forma disclosures, eitagall prior periods presented or (b)
prior interim periods of the year of adoption. T®@mpany plans to adopt Statement No. 123R usingntidified prospective basis in which
compensation cost is recognized beginning wittreffective date (a) based on the requirements @é@&nt No. 123R for all share based
payments granted after the effective date andgbgd on the requirements of Statement No. 123Ifawards granted to employees prior to
the effective date of Statement No. 123R that rarmmaivested on the effective date.

As permitted by Statement No. 123, thenBany currently accounts for share-based paymemmployees using APB No. 25's
intrinsic value method and, as such, generallygezes no compensation cost for employee stoclkgtiAccordingly, the adoption of
Statement No. 123R’s fair value method will hawggmificant impact on the Company’s results of @piens, although it will have no impact
on the Company’s overall financial position. Thepamnt of adoption of Statement No. 123R cannot kdipted at this time because it will
depend on levels of share-based payments grantbd future. However, had the Company adopted i@&ieNo. 123R in prior periods, the
impact of that standard would have approximatedripact of Statement No. 123 as described in teelabure of pro forma net income and
earnings per share. Statement No. 123R also rexghiesbenefits of tax deductions in excess of neizegl compensation cost to be reporte
a financing cash flow, rather than as an operatasgh flow as required under current literaturesThguirement could reduce net operating
cash flows and increase net financing cash flowseiiods after adoption if the Company is ablednddit from these tax deductions. The
Company cannot estimate what those amounts wih bige future because they depend on other things as the Company having net
income and when employees may exercise stock gptiince the Company has always maintained a meatipg loss, the benefit of these
tax deductions has never been realized.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsanformity with accounting principles generaltcapted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfizttthe amounts reported in the financial statetsieExamples include accrued clinical
and preclinical expenses. Actual results coulcediffom those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2004 and 2003 fira statements have been reclassified to confortihie 2005 financial statement
presentation. The changes had no effect on thétsedloperations previously reported.

Note 2 - Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment consisted offtiiewing at December 31:

2005 2004
Furniture and fixture $ 339,638 $§ 330,67
Office equipmen 589,70: 581,52(
Software 485,55« 489,87:
Laboratory equipmer 4,013,70: 3,595,85!
Leased equipmel 62,71z 62,71z
Leasehold improvemen 4,624,32. 4,670,001

10,115,63 9,730,64!
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (7,707,68) (6,913,49)
Furniture and equipment, n $ 2,407,995 $ 2,817,155
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Long-lived assets and certain identifaibtangible assets to be held and used are redifavémpairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amoustch assets may not be recoverable. Determinatitatoverability is based on an estimate
of undiscounted future cash flows resulting from tise of the asset and its eventual dispositiothdrevent that such cash flows are not
expected to be sufficient to recover the carryingpant of the assets, the assets are written dowretpestimated fair values. Long-lived
assets and certain identifiable intangible assetetdisposed of are reported at the lower of aagrgmount or fair value less cost to sell.

The Company reviewed its furniture andipment for possible impairment in accordance \8ithtement No. 144 for the year ended
December 31, 2005. As a result, the Company redadémpairment charge of $52,215 to write downairgd assets to their estimated fair
values. The impairment charge was primarily relateldasehold improvements on space that is noclongder lease by the Company and
was included in general and administrative expemstdge statements of operations.

Note 3 - Concentration of Credit and Market Risk

The Company invests its excess cashipdtlg in U.S. marketable securities from a diviesl portfolio of institutions with strong
credit ratings and in U.S. government and agenity d&nd notes and, by policy, limits the amountiedit exposure at any one institution.
These investments are generally not collateral@etimature within less than three years. The Cognpas not realized any losses from such
investments. At December 31, 2005, $21,895,909imeested in the Merrill Lynch Premier Institutiorfadind, a money market mutual fund
that invests in near cash securities with weiglatestage maturities of less than 90 days. The Meymch Premier Institutional Fund is not
insured.

The Company’s raw materials, drug sulzstanand drug products are manufactured by a tingiteup of suppliers and some at a single
facility. If any of these suppliers were unablgtoduce these items, this could significantly intghe Company’s supply of drugs for further
preclinical testing and clinical trials.

Note 4 - Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses were comprised of theviong at December 31:

2005 2004
Accrued clinical trials $ 877,88. $ 330,92
Accrued legal fee 189,43( 20,00(
Accrued consulting fee 66,62 128,50¢
Stock purchase plan withholdin 81,46( 54,47¢
Other 36,62¢ 30,05¢
Accrued expense $ 1,252,01i $ 563,96:
Note 5 - Lease Obligations and Other Contingencies
The Company has the following lease @blans at December 31, 2005:
Operating
Leases
2006 $ 533,90
2007 486,11
2008 496,83:
2009 492,82!
2010 248,88
Total minimum payment $ 2,258,56!

Rent expense for operating leases wa®,338, $583,969, and $603,996 in 2005, 2004 an8,2@8pectively. The commitment for
operating leases is primarily related to the batdiease, which expires in June 2010. The leasaemeended effective December 1, 2005 for a
reduction in occupied space, requires monthly ref$36,855 beginning in
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December 2005 and escalates annually to a mininfd19481 per month in the final year. The Comphayg an option to renew the lease
for an additional five years at the current marké¢ on the date of termination and a one-timeoogtt terminate the lease on June 30, 2008,
subject to a reasonable termination fee.

On August 5, 2002, at the request oftbrapensation committee, the Company’s Board ofddars approved a reduction in salary of
25% for Dr. Charles E. Bugg, Chairman and Chiefdtxige Officer and Dr. J. Claude Bennett, Presid€hief Operating Officer and
Medical Director, effective August 1, 2002. In tent of any change of control of the Company, @ampulative salary reductions up to the
date of the change of control would become duepaydble. The monthly amount of the reduction wag&247 combined. On December 8,
2003, the Board of Directors approved the recomrataid of the compensation committee to restore gadaries to their previous amounts
effective January 1, 2004, leaving the cumulateduction of $249,509 outstanding in the event di@ange in control.

Note 6 - Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes differsrir the amounts computed by applying the statutederfal income tax rate to income before
income taxes. The sources and tax effects ofifferehces are as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Federal taxes benefit at statutory rate on incoeferb income taxe $ (9,134,56) $ (7,386,44) $ (4,445,02)
State taxes benefit, net of federal income tax tite (1,120,789 (917,879 (559,42)
Increase in valuation allowan 12,706,72 9,786,92! 5,484,47
Permanent items (federal effe 1,488,58: 882,83( 366,46¢
R&D credit (4,237,25I) (2,514,34) (1,038,16)
Othernet 297,29: 148,91( 191,66¢
Total tax expense (benef $ — 3 —  $ —

The Company has not had taxable incomseshcorporation and, therefore, has not paidiacgyme taxes. Significant components of
the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilittesaa follows:

2005 2004
Deferred tax asset
Net operating losse $ 51,727,86 $ 43,136,16
General business cred 16,536,93 12,299,68
Fixed asset 594,43: 511,00:
Accrued expense 168,38t 159,55¢
Reserve for doubtful accour — —
Deferred revenu 113,40( 113,40(
Other — 193,69°
Total deferred tax asse 69,141,022 56,413,50
Total deferred tax liabilitie — —
Net deferred tax ass 69,141,022 56,413,50
Valuation allowanct (69,141,02) (56,413,50)
Net deferred tax asse $ —  $ —

Because the majority of the deferredassets relate to net operating loss (NOL) carryfods that can only be realized if the Company
is profitable in future periods and because the @amy has never been profitable in the past, intettain whether the Company will realize
any tax benefit related to the NOL carryforwardscordingly, the Company has provided a valuatitowance against the net deferred tax
assets due to uncertainties as to their ultimatiézegion. The valuation allowance will remain la¢ full amount of the deferred tax asset until
it is more likely than not that the related tax &&s will be realized.
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As of December 31, 2005, the Companyrtetdperating loss and research and developmettit cegryforwards of approximately
$136,300,000 and $16,500,000, respectively, whiglire at various dates from 2006 through 2025.

Use of the Carryforward Tax Benefits vl subject to a substantial annual limitation thuhe change of ownership provisions of the
Tax Reform Act of 1986. The annual limitation igpekted to result in the expiration of a portiorthef Carryforward Tax Benefits before
utilization. The ownership change which occurred 996 has been considered by the Company in itpatations under Statement No. 109.
Due to recent stock issuances, it is possibleatiditional limitations could currently apply. The@pany has not performed a detailed
analysis to determine if an additional ownershiprefe has occurred under the tax code or to deteritsiimpact on its ability to use these
operating loss and research credit carryforwardsvéver, it is not anticipated that any such analygiuld have a material impact on the
balance sheet as a result of offsetting changdeideferred tax valuation allowance.

Note 7 — Stockholders’ Equity

On December 14, 2005, the Company eniatedh stock purchase agreement with Kleiner Parkiaufield & Byers Holdings, LLC,
KPTV, LLC and TPG Biotechnology Partners, L.P. amoection with a registered direct offering of BB29 shares of its common stock at
an offering price of $13.46 per share. The comntookswas issued pursuant to prospectus supplerfitsvith the Securities and Exchar
Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) of the SéiesriAct of 1933, as amended (“the Securities Aéti’connection with a shelf takedown
from the Company’s registration statement on ForB(833-111226), which was filed on December 1®38nd which became effective on
January 5, 2004, and the Company’s registraticersi@nt on Form S-3 (333-128087), which was filedSeptember 2, 2005 and which
became effective on September 20, 2005. On Deceb@h&005, the Company issued the total 2,228,8a8s of common stock to the
aforementioned investors and received total praceédpproximately $30 million (approximately $29n8@llion net of expenses).

On February 9, 2005, the Company entarteda Placement Agency Agreement with Leerink Sw&rCompany in connection with a
registered direct offering of 4,350,000 shareso€ommon stock at an offering price of $5.50 ere. The common stock was issued
pursuant to a prospectus supplement filed withSibeurities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 84€b)(2) of the Securities Act in
connection with a shelf takedown from the Compamggistration statement on Form S-3 (333-11122iey bn December 16, 2003 and
which became effective on January 5, 2004.

On February 17, 2005, the Company entientedstock purchase agreements with a numberstitutional investors for an aggregate of
4,350,000 shares of common stock at a gross puegitase of $5.50 per share or approximately $23|Bom (approximately $22.7 million
net of expenses). One of these agreements waBafithr Brothers Investments, L.P., Baker Brotheve$tments II, L.P., Baker Biotech
Fund I, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund II, L.P., Bakeotgich Fund Il (Z), L.P., Baker Biotech Fund IlI P, Baker Biotech Fund Il (2), L.P.,
Baker/Tisch Investments, L.P., and 14159, L.PtherBaker investors, for a total of 1,454,545 share

On February 4, 2004, the Company entarteda Placement Agency Agreement with Leerink Sw&rCompany in connection with a
registered direct offering of 3,571,667 sharesotommon stock at an offering price of $6.00 pers. The common stock was issued
pursuant to a prospectus supplement filed withSibeurities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 84€b)(2) of the Securities Act in
connection with a shelf takedown from the Compamggistration statement on Form S-3 (333-11122iey bn December 16, 2003 and
which became effective on January 5, 2004.

On February 17, 2004, the Company entierteda Stock Purchase Agreement with Caduceustrinvestments I, LP, Caduceus
Private Investments Il (QP), LP and UBS JunipersSover Fund, L.L.C. As part of this agreement,Gbenpany granted these investors the
right to appoint a member to its board of direceffgctive as of the closing of the offering. CebFuary 18, 2004, the Company completed a
$21.4 million registered direct offering of 3,57876shares of its common stock to a group of insbital investors.

In June 2002, the Board of Directors dddm stockholder rights plan and, pursuant therssaed preferred stock purchase rights
(“Rights”) to the holders of the Company’s commawock. The Rights have certain anti-takeover effedt triggered, the Rights would cause
substantial dilution to a person or group of pessaho acquires more than 15% (19.9% for WilliamP&atheringill, a Director who owned
approximately 9.95% at December 31, 2005, but
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owned more than 15% at the time the Rights werérppiace) of the Company’s common stock on terotsapproved by the Board of
Directors. The rights are not exercisable untl distribution date, as defined in the Rights Agreet by and between the Company and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Rigtgent. The Rights will expire at the close of mesis on June 24, 2012, unless that
final expiration date is extended or unless thbtdgre earlier redeemed or exchanged by the Compan

Each Right entitles the registered hotdgrurchase from the Company one one-thousanditsbére of Series B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (“Series B"), par value $0.001gi&re, at a purchase price of $26.00, subjectjtstdent. Shares of Series B purchasable
upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemalBlach share of Series B will be entitled to adiwvid of 1,000 times the dividend declared
per share of common stock. In the event of ligtiiha each share of Series B will be entitled fmagment of 1,000 times the payment made
per share of common stock. Each share of Serigdl Bave 1,000 votes, voting together with the e¢oam stock. Finally, in the event of any
merger, consolidation, or other transaction in Wwtgbares of common stock are exchanged, each sh@eries B will be entitled to receive
1,000 times the amount received per share of constumk. Effective in December 2005, we increasedaiithorized shares available under
these rights to 45,000 to match the authorized comshares of 45,000,000.

In November 1991, the Board of Directadepted the 1991 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”)kiey employees and consultants of the
Company and reserved 500,000 shares of common f&pidsuance under the Plan. The Plan was apprioyélde stockholders on December
19, 1991. The original term of the Plan was foryears and included provisions for issuance of lpatbntive stock options and non-statutory
options. The exercise price of options granted utttePlan shall not be less than the fair markéterof common stock on the grant date.
Options granted under the Plan generally vest 266 ane year and monthly thereafter on a prolatis over the next three years until fully
vested after four years and expire ten years #ftegrant date. Options are generally granted falktime employees.

The Plan was amended and restated irukgb993 to effect the following changes: (i) deithe Plan into two separate incentive
programs: the Discretionary Option Grant Prograuh thie Automatic Option Grant Program (for outsideebtors), (ii) increase the number
of shares of the Company’s common stock availainésuance under the Plan by 500,000 shares ignex@and the level of benefits
available under the Plan. The Board amended te &1 December 23, 1993 to increase the numbdranés issuable under the Plan by
500,000 shares and subsequently amended and destatelan in its entirety on February 8, 1994 March 16, 1995, the Board authorized
another 500,000 shares for issuance under the FHlam Plan was subsequently amended and restdgadive¥ March 3, 1997, which
amendment and restatement included an increas@@d,000 shares. The Plan (as so amended ancerhsiats further amended March 1,
1999 to increase the share reserve by 400,000ssh@lee Board amended and restated the Planeéntitety on March 6, 2000, which
increased the reserved shares by 1,200,000 amdextehe term of the Plan for ten years from ttie dathe amendment. This restatement
was approved by the Company’s stockholders on Ma@Q00. The Plan was amended March 8, 2004 tease the number of shares
reserved for issuance by 1,000,000 and to amenaiutoenatic option grant program related to inigiednts, vesting and option terms. The
automatic option grant program grants options taipase 10,000 shares to new non-employee Board erepgyorated from their initial
appointment to the next Annual Meeting, and antaafdil 10,000 shares annually over such perioafinued service all of which vest one-
twelfth per month. Directors receiving options unttee automatic option grant program will have filleterm of the original option to
exercise all options vested at the time of thefisaéion from service. This amendment was approyadébCompany’s stockholders on May
12, 2004. The vesting and exercise provisions tibop granted under the Plan are subject to aai@erin the event of certain stockholder-
approved transactions, or upon the occurrenceGifamge in Control as defined by the Plan.
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The following is an analysis of stockiops for the three years ended December 31, 2005:

Weighted
Options Options Average
Available Outstanding Exercise Price
Balance December 31, 20 606,49: 2,998,48" $ 8.4¢
Options grante: (546,000 546,00( 1.27
Options exercise — (186,229 4.7z
Options cancele 440,32! (440,32Y 8.8:
Balance December 31, 20 500,81 2,917,93. 7.2¢
Option plan amende 1,000,001 — —
Options grante: (499,19) 499,19° 8.7¢
Options exercise — (283,636 3.81
Options cancele 34,14¢ (34,149 4.1C
Balance December 31, 20 1,035,77. 3,099,34 7.8¢
Options grante: (653,80)) 653,80: 4.6¢€
Options exercise — (450,71) 5.5C
Options cancele 61,07" (61,077 5.9¢
Balance December 31, 20 443,04 3,241,35: 7.6C

There were 2,199,129, 2,220,583, and21%2 options exercisable at December 31, 2005} a6d 2003, respectively. The weighted-
average exercise price for options exercisable$881, $8.94, and $9.71 at December 31, 2005, 20642003, respectively.

The following table summarizes, at Decentil, 2005, by price range: (1) for options oulidiag, the number of options outstanding,
their weighted-average remaining life and theirgit@d-average exercise price; and (2) for opticesaisable, the number of options
exercisable and their weighted-average exercisepri

Outstanding Exercisable

Price Range Number Life Price Number Price
$0to3 594,94. 7C $ 1.1 414,36¢ $ 1.1¢

3to6 830,40t 8.€ 4.3¢€ 227,16 3.7¢

6to9 1,197,93. 5.5 7.81 947,86 7.62

9to 12 17,95 4.4 9.71 13,78 9.67
12 to 15 276,51! 1.2 14.1¢ 276,51! 14.1¢
1510 18 98,06: 1.4 16.3¢ 93,89¢ 16.3¢
21to 24 205,92( 3.6 22.8¢ 205,92( 22.8¢
2410 30 19,62( 4.4 26.8: 19,62( 26.8:
$ 0to 30 3,241,35. 5.¢ 7.6 2,199,12! 8.81

As of December 31, 2005, there were aymeagate of 3,809,999 shares reserved for futuuaigs under both the Plan and the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) discussaibia 8.

The Company follows APB No. 25 in accangtfor both the Plan and the ESPP and, accordimiglgs not recognize any compensation
cost related to options granted to employees oremoployee Directors, unless there is a modificatmthe original option that would require
recognition of compensation cost under FIN No.Her.example, in May 2004, the stockholders appraredmendment to Automatic Opti
Grant Program for directors, which resulted in@wnpany recognizing $457,000 in compensation expeglated to this amendment during
2004. The Company has adopted the disclosure myaints of Statement No. 123, as amended by Staténea48. The fair value of each
option is estimated on the grant date using thelBfcholes option-pricing method with the followingighted-average assumptions used for
grants in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively: naldivds; expected volatility of 96.6, 103.1, and.4Qdercent; risk-free interest rate of 3.9,
4.0, and 3.0 percent; and expected lives of fiveryeThe weighted-average grant-date fair valuegptbns granted during 2005 under the
Plan and ESPP were $3.48 and $2.55, respectivie/cdmpensation cost recorded for options issuedrieemployee consultants, was
$26,392, $512,427, and $119,676 for the years eBeedmber 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectivelichnhcluded $456,787 in 2004
related to the modification of options for outstemgdirectors as a result of the amendment to the &uring 2004.

Note 8- Employee Benefit Plans



On January 1, 1991, the Company adoptezh@ployee retirement plan (the “401(k) Plan”) un8ection 401(Kk) of the Internal
Revenue Code covering all employees. Employee ibotibns may be made to the 401(k) Plan up to $iratablished by the Internal
Revenue Service. Company matching contributions ngagnade at the discretion of the Board of Dirextdhe Company made matching
contributions of $205,524, $171,601, and $158,428005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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On May 29, 1995, the stockholders appiahe ESPP effective February 1, 1995. On May 0622the stockholders approved an
amendment to the ESPP to reserve an additionad@0Ghares and eliminate the January 2005 terraimdtite. The Company has reserved a
total of 400,000 shares of common stock under R of which 125,601 shares remain availabledochase at December 31, 2005.
Eligible employees may authorize up to 15% of tlsaiary to purchase common stock at the lower &6 85the beginning or 85% of the
ending price during the six-month purchase intexvidb more than 3,000 shares may be purchasedybyrenemployee at the six-month
purchase dates and no employee may purchase stotigha fair market value at the commencement afg$25,000 or more in any one
calendar year. There were 25,700, 31,695, and2&Bares of common stock purchased under the ESEI®5, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, at a weighted average price per stfe$®.06, $3.82, and $0.74, respectively.

Note 9 - Collaborative and Other Research and Devagbment Contracts

Rocheln November 2005, the Company entered into an skauicense with Roche for the development androengialization of th
Company'’s second generation purine nucleoside pluoglase (“PNP”) inhibitor, BCX-4208, for the prew@n of acute rejection in
transplantation and for the treatment of autoimmidiseases. Under the terms of the agreement, Ridathaned worldwide rights to BCX-
4208 in exchange for a $25 million up-front paymend a $5 million payment as reimbursement fométdid supply of material during the
first 24 months of the collaboration. Accordingthe terms of the license, there could also be éudwent payments for achieving specified
development, regulatory and commercial milestoimeduding sales level milestones following a prodsitaunch) for certain indications. In
addition, the Company will receive royalties baseda percentage of net product sales, which vdepsnding upon when certain indications
receive NDA approval in a major market country aad vary by country depending on the patent cowcoagales of generic compounds
particular country. The Company licensed this coumaband other PNP inhibitors from the Albert Einst€ollege of Medicine of Yeshiva
University (“AECOM”) and Industrial Research, Lidew Zealand (“IRL") and will owe sublicense paynetd these third parties on the
upfront payment, future event payments and royaléeeived by the Company for the sublicense afelehibitors.

Roche will have a right of first negoitat, under certain conditions, on existing backiPRnhibitors the Company develops through
Phase llb in transplant rejection and autoimmuseaties, but any new PNP inhibitors will be exemgohfthis agreement and the Company
will retain all rights to such compounds. We retia right to co-promote BCX-4208 in the U.S. feveral indications. Roche has certain
obligations under the terms of the agreement taccosamercially reasonable efforts to develop, mactufe and commercialize the licensed
product. The agreement will be governed by a jsieering committee to oversee and review the reBeard development activities of both
parties. The agreement may be terminated by giidugy following an uncured material breach by ttieeo party or may be either fully or
partially terminated by Roche without cause uneegtain conditions and all rights, data, materipfsducts and other information would be
transferred to the Company at no cost.

At December 31, 2005, the Company reabadeeceivable of $30 million due from Roche fag #25 million up-front payment and the
$5 million payment as reimbursement for supply eSénamounts were received from Roche in January. 2@0accordance with SAB No.
104 and EITF Issue 00-21, the Company also recatdéztred revenue of $30 million related to the focollaboration at December 31,
2005. The Company’s management anticipates tisatiéierred revenue will be amortized to revenuwgirtieng in July 2006 and ending in
August 2023, which is the date of expiration fae thst-to-expire patent covered by the agreeméngrefore, at December 31, 2005,
$873,786 of the deferred revenue is classifiechast-germ while the remaining $29,126,214 is cliésdias long-term.

Albert Einstein College of Medicine and Industfiz@search, Ltdn June 2000, the Company licensed a series ohpuwthibitors of
PNP from AECOM and IRL. The lead drug candidatemfthis collaboration are Fodosine™ and BCX-4Zl08& Company has obtained
worldwide exclusive rights to develop and ultimgitdistribute these, or any other, drug candiddtasmight arise from research on these
inhibitors. The Company has agreed to pay certadiestone payments for future development of thak#itors, certain royalties on sales of
any resulting product, and to share in future paymeeceived from other thindarty collaborators, if any. In addition, the Canp agreed t
pay an annual license fee that is non-refundabieisicreditable against actual royalties and offagments due to AECOM and IRL. This
agreement may be terminated by the Company atimeylty giving 60 days advance notice or in the eeématerial uncured breach by
AECOM and IRL.
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Upon completion of the collaboration wRRlbche for BCX-4208, the Company was obligatedap AECOM/IRL approximately $6
million, which was included in accounts payabl®atember 31, 2005. The payment to AECOM/IRL wastabized as a deferred expens
December 31, 2005. The deferred expense will bert@red into expense in proportion to the reveragmgnized from the Roche agreement.

The University of Alabama at Birmingham (“UAB™he Company currently has agreements with UABrifluenza neuraminidase
and complement inhibitors. Under the terms of threggeements, UAB performed specific research ferGbmpany in return for research
payments and license fees. UAB has granted the @ayngertain rights to any discoveries in thesesaresulting from research developed by
UAB or jointly developed with the company. The Camp has agreed to pay royalties on sales of anytirgs product and to share in future
payments received from other third-party collaborstThe Company has completed the research umel&tAB influenza agreement. The
Company funded the research program under the esngpit inhibitors agreement through March 2002, twieiatitled the Company to an
assignment of, or a right to an exclusive licermgedny inhibitors of specified complement enzymesgeloped by UAB scientists during the
period of support or for a one-year period themraffhese two agreements have initial 25-year teanesautomatically renewable for five-
year terms throughout the life of the last patemwt are terminable by the Company upon three marttise and by UAB under certa
circumstances. There is currently no activity betwas and UAB on these agreements, but in the ewelitense technology or
commercialize products related to these programsautd owe sublicense fees or royalties on amouwetseceive.

Emory University (“Emory”). In June 2000, the Company licensed intellectuap@rty from Emory related to the hepatitis C
polymerase target associated with hepatitis C infaktions. Under the original terms of the agreamthe research investigators from Err
provided the Company with materials and technigsiight into the target. The Company has agre@éyd=Emory royalties on sales of any
resulting product and to share in future paymeateived from other third party collaborators, ifarThe Company can terminate this
agreement at any time by giving 90 days advandeaot

3-Dimensional Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“3DP"n December 2003, the Company transferred to 3¥haly owned subsidiary of
Johnson & Johnson, certain rights related to comete system inhibitors discovered during the Comgisaeollaborative research agreement
with 3DP, which was terminated by the Company oto®er 18, 2003. BioCryst received an initial paytrfeom 3DP, and will receive
royalties on any future sales of complement inbiisitovered under the assignment.

Sunol Molecular Corporation (“Sunol”)ln April 1999, the Company entered into an agredmatin Sunol. This agreement requires
Sunol to conduct research and supply the Compatiyprotein targets for drug design to expeditediseovery of new drug candidates
designed to inhibit tissue factor/factor Vlla fbetCompany’s cardiovascular program. In 2005, fisets and obligations of Sunol were
transferred to Altor BioScience Corporation.

Novartis Corporation (“Novartis)”.The Company granted Novartis, formerly Ciba-Geigygoration, an option in 1990 to acquire
exclusive licenses to a class of inhibitors aridiogn research performed by the Company by Febri@®1. The option was exercised and a
$500,000 fee was paid to the Company in 1993. Mites payments are due upon approval of a new grplication. The Company will also
receive royalties based upon a percentage of shbasy resultant products. Up to $300,000 of thigainfee received is refundable if sales of
any resultant products are below specified levetslas been recorded as deferred revenue. Thisragre has been inactive for several
years.

Note 10 — Subsequent Events

In February 2006, the Company entereal amt exclusive, royalty bearing right and licengeeament with Mundipharma International
Holdings Limited (“Mundipharma”) for the developnteand commercialization of the Company’s lead Phtihitor, Fodosine™, for use in
oncology. Under the terms of the agreement, Muratipia obtained rights in to Fodosine™ in marketesscEurope, Asia, and Australasia in
exchange for a $10 million up-front payment. Muridipma will share 50% of the documented out of pbdkgelopment costs incurred by
the Company in respect of the current and plannaid tas of the effective date of the agreementigesl that Mundipharma’s maximum
contribution to these trials shall be $10 milliém.addition, Mundipharma will conduct additionainital trials at their own cost up to a
maximum of $15 million. The license provides foture event payments for achieving specified develent, regulatory and commercial
events (including certain sales level amounts ¥ailhg a product’s launch) for certain indications.addition, the Company will receive
royalties based on a percentage of net product
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sales, which varies depending upon when certaiicatidns receive NDA approval in a major marketrmoy and can vary by country
depending on the patent coverage or sales of gec@mpounds in a particular country. Generallypalyments under the agreement are
nonrefundable and non-creditable, but they areestibp audit. The Company licensed Fodosine™ anerd®NP inhibitors from AECOM
and IRL and will owe sublicense payments to thage parties on the upfront payment, future evexytrpents and royalties received by the
Company from Mundipharma.

For five years, Mundipharma will haveight of first negotiation on existing backup PNRibitors the Company develops through
Phase Ilb in oncology, but any new PNP inhibitoil lme exempt from this agreement and the Compaitiyretain all rights to such
compounds. The Company retained the rights to Fod8%in the U.S. and Mundipharma is obligated lg/tdrms of the agreement to use
commercially reasonable efforts to develop thenkesl product in the territory specified by the agrent. The agreement is governed by a
Joint Steering Committee to oversee and reviewahearch and development activities of both parfiee agreement will continue for the
commercial life of the licensed products, but maytdrminated by either party following an uncureatenial breach by the other party or in
the event the prexisting third party license with AECOM and IRL évgs. It may be terminated by Mundipharma upon &@sdwritten notic
without cause or under certain other conditionspegified in the agreement and all rights, datdaenss, products and other information
would be transferred back to the Company at na toshe event the Company terminates the agreefoentaterial default or insolvency,
the Company could have to pay Mundipharma 50% etthsts of any independent data owned by Mundiph@mraccordance with the terms
of the agreement.

In accordance with SAB No. 104 and EI$&ule 00-21, the Company plans to defer the $1@milip-front payment that was received
from Mundipharma in February 2006. The Company'saggment anticipates that this deferred revenudowihmortized to revenue
beginning in February 2006 and ending in Octobdr72@hich is the date of expiration for the lasetire patent covered by the agreem:

In accordance with EITF Issue 99-19 and EITF 1€kl 4, the costs reimbursed by Mundipharma forctireent and planned trials of
Fodosine™ will be recorded as revenue when theresgis incurred up to the $10 million limit stiptgd in the agreement. Upon completion
of the collaboration with Mundipharma for Fodosingfffe Company is obligated to pay AECOM and IRLragpnately $2 million.

Also in February 2006, the Company otgdia $1.8 million letter of credit. This letteraedit was obtained for a customs bond that
was required in order to import into the countrynpmund that was manufactured abroad. The Compasy miat anticipate drawing any fur
against this letter of credit in the future, butauld remain in force for up to one year or uatistoms closes the file on the particular receipt
of goods for which the bond was required.

Note 11 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

As outlined in Note 1, the FASB issuedt&tent No. 123R, which is a revision of StatenNmt123 in December 2004. Statement
No. 123R requires all she-based payments to employees and directors todogmezed in the financial statements based on fagivalues,
superseding APB No. 25 and its related implemeataguidance. Under APB No. 25, issuing stock optimnemployees could have resulted
in no compensation cost. Statement No. 123R eliteinthis alternative and requires entities to egpehe cost of employee services received
in exchange for stock options based on the grastfdir value of those awards. The Company culyeticounts for its employee stock
options in accordance with APB No. 25 while distigsthe pro forma effect of the options had thegrbeecorded under the fair value
method. The Company adopted this accounting stdrataJanuary 1, 2006. It is anticipated thatatieption of this statement will have a
significant impact on the Company’s results of @piens, although it will have no impact on the Camy's financial position.
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Note 12 - Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) (In thousands, except per share)

First Second Third Fourth

2005 Quarters

Revenue: $ 41 $ 58 $ 32 % 21

Net loss (5,645 (5,64¢) (7,645 (7,162)

Net loss per shai (.29 (.22 (.29 (.27)
2004 Quarters

Revenue! $ 0 $ 43 $ 11€ $ 17¢

Net loss (5,462) (5,057%) (5,296) (5,289

Net loss per shai (.28 (.23 (.29) (.29)

Net loss and net loss per share each year may tfifi@ the total of the individual quarters dugdonding.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balaheets of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of Bdeg 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related
statements of operations, stockholders’ equitycash flows for each of the three years in the plegicded December 31, 2005. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@mmpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpian opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordanch thi¢ standards of the Public Company Accountingr€ight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform an ddibtain reasonable assurance about whetheindmecfal statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by maregeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statememferred to above present fairly, in all materedpects, the financial position of BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of December 31, 2005 @64d,2nd the results of its operations and its 8asis for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity Wwit8. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting §lght Board (United States), the
effectiveness of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inmteiinal control over financial reporting as of Dexter 31, 2005, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framédwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission
and our report dated March 8, 2006 expressed amalifigd opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF
Birmingham, Alabami
March 8, 200¢
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessmelotied in the accompanying Management’'s Repoihtarnal Control Over Financial
Reporting, that BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. naimed effective internal control over financiapogting as of December 31, 2005, base
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrafedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgp@irzations of the Treadway
Commission (“the COSO criteria”). BioCryst Pharmatbeals, Inc.5 management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control ove
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifilecéiveness of internal control over financial oefing. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’'s assessment and an opinitimreceffectiveness of the company’s internal adrdver financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance tighstandards of the Public Company Accountingrélght Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahgaéiag the design and operating effectivenessateirnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesaaonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over finaalaieporting is a process designed to provide restsle assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jge reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygsats that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, g control over financial reporting may not pretrer detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessnmattBioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained éffednternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly state@ll material respects, based on the COSOriitalso, in our opinion, BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained, in all mategapects, effective internal control over financ&dorting as of December 31, 2005, based on
the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgbt Board (United States), the 2005
financial statements of BioCryst Pharmaceuticails, &nd our report dated March 8, 2006 expressethgualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF
Birmingham, Alabami
March 8, 200¢
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure contasld procedures that are designed to ensure tloariafion relating to BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. required to be disclosediimperiodic filings under the Securities Exchange i& recorded, processed, summarizec
reported in a timely manner under the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934. We carried out an evaluatioen the supervision and with the
participation of management, including our ChietEuxtive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of teffectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and proceduBased upon that evaluation, the Chief Executiffec€ and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of December 31, 2005, our discéocontrols and procedures are effective to erntbat information required to be
disclosed by BioCryst in the reports filed or sutted by it under the Securities Exchange Act of4,%& amended, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipd in the rules and forms of the Securities &xdhange Commission, and include
controls and procedures designed to ensure tranattion required to be disclosed by BioCryst inbsteports is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including the @Gtairand Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finan@#icer of BioCryst, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, (the “Company”) is responsible for establishémgl maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting and for the assgamst of the effectiveness of internal control ofieancial reporting. As defined by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, internal cbotrer financial reporting is a process designeddoyunder the supervision of our
principal executive and principal financial offisesind effected by our Board of Directors, managermed other personnel, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaficial reporting and the preparation of the ctidated financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Our internal control over financial refiog is supported by written policies and procedutat (1) pertain to the maintenance of rec
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fagRect our transactions and dispositions of ouetss42) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepagation of the consolidated financial statemenécordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and exipers$ of BioCryst are being made only in accor@awith authorizations of our
management and directors; and (3) provide reaserasiurance regarding prevention or timely detecffainauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of our assets that could have a mateffiact on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, mgd control over financial reporting may not pretrer detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of annual financial statements, management has ak@ertain assessment of the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting asidcember 31, 2005, based on criteria establishéutérnal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (the COSO Frameworlgndfjement’s assessment
included an evaluation of the design of our inteowatrol over financial reporting and testing bétoperational effectiveness of those
controls.

Based on this assessment, managemenbhekided that as of December 31, 2005, our inteorarol over financial reporting was
effective to provide reasonable assurance regattimgeliability of financial reporting and the peration of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accegtedunting principles.
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Ernst & Young LLP, the independent regjistl public accounting firm that audited our finahstatements included in this report, have
issued an attestation report on managemmeagsessment of internal control over financiabriépg, a copy of which appears on page 61 of
annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our inteordrol over financial reporting that occurredidg the quarter ended December 31, 2005
that have materially affected, or are reasonakblyjito materially affect, BioCryst's internal cook over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The directors and executive officers af@yst are as follows:

Name Age Position(s) with the Company
Charles E. Bugg, Ph.I 64 Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Direc
J. Claude Bennett, M.L 72 President, Chief Operating Officer, Medical Direcaémd Directol
Michael A. Darwin 44 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treas!
Jonathan M. P. Nuge 38 Vice President, Corporate Communicatit
Randall B. Rigg: 39 Senior Vice President, Business Developn
Stephen R. Biggar, M.D., Ph.| 35 Director

William W. Featheringill 63 Director

Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D. (: 41 Director

John L. Higgins (1)(2 36 Director

Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.D. (1 71 Director

Beth C. Seidenberg, M.I 48 Director

Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr. (. 65 Director

William M. Spencer, llI 85 Director

Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.D. ( 56 Director

(1) Member of the Compensation Committ* Compensation Committ”).

(2) Member of the Audit Committe¢ Audit Committer”).

Charles E. Bugg, Ph.vas named Chairman of the Board, Chief Executiiic&fand Director in November 1993 and President i
January 1995. He relinquished the position of iBlezs in December 1996 when Dr. J. Claude Benoeatef us in that position. Prior to
joining us, Dr. Bugg had been a member of the fgafithe University of Alabama at Birminghai®"UAB”) since 1968, having served as
Professor of Biochemistry, Director of the CentarMacromolecular Crystallography, and AssociateeEtor of the Comprehensive Cancer
Center. He was a founder of BioCryst and sengeadua first Chief Executive Officer from 1987-1988ile on a sabbatical from UAB. Dr.
Bugg also served as Chairman of our Scientific &dm Board from January 1986 to November 1993. ¢igicues to hold the position of
Professor Emeritus in Biochemistry and Moleculan&es at UAB, a position he has held since Janliggéd.
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J. Claude Bennett, M.vas named President and Chief Operating Offic&anember 1996 and elected a Director in January.199
Since 2001, Dr. Bennett has also served as theddleDirector. Prior to joining us, Dr. Bennett wRiesident of The University of Alabams
Birmingham (“UAB”) from October 1993 to DecemberdBand Professor and Chairman of the DepartmeMtealicine of UAB from
January 1982 to October 1993. Dr. Bennett servenorScientific Advisory Board from 1989-96. Heaidormer co-editor of th€ecil
Textbook of Medicinand former President of the Association of AmeriBPéysicians. He is a past chair of the Scienfifivisory Committe
of the Massachusetts General Hospital, a membiedbcientific Advisory Board of Zycogen, LLC, aodntinues to hold the position of
Distinguished University Professor Emeritus at UARjosition he has held since January 1997.

Michael A. Darwifoined BioCryst in June 2000 as Controller. EffeetNovember 1, 2002, Mr. Darwin was appointed CRiafncial
Officer, Secretary and Treasurer. Prior to joinBigCryst, from June 1990 to June 2000, Mr. Darwas Chief Financial Officer of a
privately held company in the food services indudtte began his career at Ernst & Young and sprnytesirs in public accounting practice.

Randall B. Riggsined BioCryst in February 2005 as Vice PresidBosiness Development and was promoted to Sena® Vi
President, Business Development effective Janua®g.2Mr. Riggs served as Vice President, Businesel@pment at TransMolecular, Inc.
an emerging oncology company from September 20@#kbouary 2005. Before joining TransMolecular, Beved as a Corporate Licensing
and Business Development consultant for TRUBIONrRlaaeuticals, Inc. from March 2004 to August 20@4. Riggs was previously
Senior Vice President, Corporate Licensing and iB2gg Development at Lexicon Genetics Incorporatad fFebruary 2000 to March 2004
and served as Vice President, Business DevelopimentDecember 1998 to February 2000. Prior to j@riiexicon Genetics, Mr. Riggs w
Director of Business Development for the InfectiMisease Unit of GeneMedicine, Inc. Mr. Riggs bebesnpharmaceutical and
biotechnology business development career with.ilyi and Company; starting as a District Sales ldiger and advancing to Manager,
Corporate Business Development.

Jonathan M. P. Nugejoined BioCryst in May 2005 as Vice President, @ogbe Communications. Mr. Nugent served as Senicg V
President at Burns McClellan, Inc., Investor Reladi Division, since April 1999, except for a perfooin August 2003 to December 2003
when he served as Director of Investor Relationg&f@tech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and from Januady 20 March 2004 when he was
performing volunteer services. He also served aoiiet Supervisor from April 1996 to April 1999, Ammt Manager from April 1994 to
April 1996, and Senior Account Executive from A893 to April 1994 at Burns McClellan.

Stephen R. Biggar, M.D., Phullas appointed to the Board in October 2005. DrgBichas served as a Principal at Baker Brothers
Investments, a family of lonterm investment funds for major university endowitseand foundations, which is focused on publichdéd life
sciences companies, since April 2002 and serveah @ssociate from April 2000 to April 2002. Priorjoining Baker Brothers, Dr. Biggar
received an M.D. and a Ph.D. in Immunology fromn&ied University. He attended the University ofdRester where he achieved a B.S.
degree in Genetics. Dr. Biggar serves as a direftone private biotechnology company.

William W. Featheringilivas elected a Director in May 1995. Mr. FeatheliiigPresident, Chief Executive Officer and dit@g since
1973, of Private Capital Corporation, a venturetaapompany. He currently serves as Chairmanle€tEonic Healthcare Systems, Inc., a
system solutions provider to the ambulatory cadeistry, since June 1995, and Momentum Businesgi&adi Inc., a telecom and VolP
company, since May 2001. Mr. Featheringill is agbtor of Altec Industries, Inc., Southern Resednshitute and the Birmingham Museum
of Art, and serves as a Trustee of Vanderbilt Ursitg. Mr. Featheringill received a BE in Mechaali€ngineering from Vanderbilt
University and a J.D. degree from the Columbia @rsity School of Law and a M.B.A. from the Columbiaiversity Graduate School of
Business.

Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D was elected a Director in March 2004. Dr. Gorgoa founding General Partner of OrbiMed Advisors
LLC, an asset management firm focused on the globalthcare industry, and has served in such dgpsioce 1998. Dr. Gordon was
previously a senior biotechnology analyst at Medrtd Isaly, the predecessor firm to OrbiMed, fror83:9997. Dr. Gordon received a
Bachelor's degree from Harvard College, a Ph.Dnatecular biology from the Massachusetts Institft€echnology, and was a Fellow at
the Rockefeller University.
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John L. Higgins/as elected a Director in May 2004. Mr. Higginsigil Connetics as Chief Financial Officer in 199%] has served as
Executive Vice President, Finance and Administratind Corporate Development since January 2003eH&d as Executive Vice Presids
Finance and Administration, from January 2000 taeddeber 2001, and as Vice President, Finance andmstnation from September 1997
through December 1999. Before joining Conneticsyhe a member of the executive management teano@tyst. Before joining BioCryst
in 1994, Mr. Higgins was a member of the healthteneking team of Dillon, Read & Co. Inc., an invesht banking firm. He currently
serves as a director of a private company. He veddiis A.B. from Colgate University.

Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.Dwas elected a Director in August 1994. Dr. Horowtrs Vice President of Business Development ananitig
at Bristol-Myers Squibb from 1991 until his retirent in April 1994 and previously was Vice Presideiticensing at the same company
from 1990 to 1991. Prior to that he spent over 88rg with The Squibb Institute for Medical Reseancbst recently as Vice President
Research, Planning, & Scientific Liaison. He hasrban independent consultant in pharmaceuticahsegeand business development since
his retirement from Bristol-Myers Squibb in Apri®94. He serves as non executive Chairman on thedBddirectors of Avigen, Inc., and
also serves on the Boards of Directors of GenakaarPaceuticals, Inc., Palatin Technologies, InOMPharmaceuticals, GenVec, Inc.,
NitroMed, Inc. and Immunicon Corporatic

Beth C. Seidenberg, M.Bas appointed to the Board in December 2005. DdeBberg has served as Partner of Kleiner Perkins
Caufield and Byers (“*KPCB”) since May 2005. Priofjoining KPCB, Dr. Seidenberg served as AmgerfigeCMedical Officer and Senior
Vice President, Global Development from January22@0December 2004, at Bristol-Myers Squibb Compampenior Vice President,
Global Development from September 2001 to Janu@@p 2Senior Vice President, Clinical Developmeriti& Cycle Management from
May 2000 to September 2001 and Vice Presidentjc@liimmunology/Pulmonary/Dermatology from April@Dto May 2000 and at
Merck/Merck Research Laboratories as Vice Presjd&ulimonary-Immunology from July 1998 to March 20BR®ecutive Director from
March 1996 to June 1998, Senior Director from Sapter 1993 to February 1996 and also served asiiicebtor and Associate Director of
Clinical Pharmacology from September 1991 to Audi@83 and from June 1989 to August 1991, respdgtiv€he received her M.D. from
University of Miami; completed post-doctoral traigiat Johns Hopkins Medical Center and speciaiyitrg in immunology and infectious
diseases at the National Institutes of Health. S@idenberg also has a B.S. degree in Biology armtrApology from Barnard College.

Joseph H. Sherrill, Jwas elected a Director in May 1995. Mr. Sherriivesl as Chief Executive Officer and President od R.
Reynolds (“RJR") Asia Pacific, based in Hong Kondpere he oversaw RJR operations across Asia, imguidensing, joint ventures and a
full line of operating companies from August 198%his retirement in October 1994. Prior managerpesitions with RJR include Senior
Vice President of Marketing for R.J. Reynolds Intgfonal, President and Chief Executive OfficeRal. Reynolds Tabacos do Brazil, and
President and General Manager of R.J. Reynoldgd®Réro. Mr. Sherrill received his M.B.A. from Cahbia University.

William M. Spencer, llhas been a Director of BioCryst since our inceptddn Spencer, who is retired, is also a privateestor in
Birmingham, Alabama. Mr. Spencer is a Founder @i®yst, and served as our Chairman of the Board fyar founding in 1986 until
April 1992. He cofounded and operated Motion Industries from 1946uph its merger into Genuine Parts Company in 1Big6has founde
several businesses and has served on the Boarideat@s of numerous public and private corporation

Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.l@gs elected a Director in February 1993. Dr. Stesrbeen an independent pharmaceutical and
biotechnology consultant since 1989, having a bimsrkground in business development, medical miagend regulatory affairs. He was
formerly Chairman, President and CEO of Advancedrapeutics Communications International, a leading regulatory group, and served
as associate director of medical affairs at Matiahoratories, and medical director at Ciba Consuptermaceuticals. Dr. Steer serves or
Board of Directors of Techne Corporation and sdvatigately held companies.

In accordance with the terms of our Certificaténaorporation, the Board of Directors has beend#idiinto three classes with
members of each class holding office for stagg#resk-year terms. In accordance with our By-Lawdirector elected to fill a vacancy shall
be elected for the unexpired term of his predecdasuifice, and a director chosen to fill a pasitiresulting from an increase in the numbe
directors shall hold office until the annual megtof stockholders of the Corporation at which tefnthe class of directors for which he has
been chosen expires. During 2005, the Board byutisn increased the size of the Board to add DggBr in October who was chosen for
2006
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class and Dr. Seidenberg who was chosen for thé @@a8s of directors. Dr. Bennett’s, Dr. Biggabs, Horovitz's and Dr. Steer’s terms
expire at the 2006 annual meeting. Dr. Bugg's,@&ordon’s, Mr. Higgins’s, and Dr. Seidenberg’s temmpire at the 2007 annual meeting,
and Mr. Featheringill’'s, Mr. Sherrill's, and Mr. 8pcer’s terms expire at the 2008 annual meetingllicases subject to the election and
qualification of their successors or to their eartieath, resignation or removal). At each annteakfiolder meeting, the successors to the
Directors whose terms expire are elected to seora the time of their election and qualificatiortiithe third annual meeting of stockhold:
following their election and until a successor haen duly elected and qualified. The provisionswfCertificate of Incorporation governing
the staggered Director election procedure can lended only by a shareholder’s vote of at least 85%ue eligible voting securities. There
are no family relationships among any of our divesiand executive officers. The Board has by ré®oliestablished the number of directors
of BioCryst at eleven (11) commencing December2D®5. Currently, nine of our directors (Biggar, theaingill, Gordon, Higgins, Horovit:
Seidenberg, Sherrill, Spencer and Steer) are imitleppe: as defined by the current Nasdaq rules.

We have an Audit Committee, consistind/efssrs. Gordon, Higgins and Sherrill, which igpassible for the review of internal
accounting controls, financial reporting and redateatters. The Audit Committee also recommendkaédoard the independent accountants
selected to be our auditors and reviews the adatit, financial statements and audit results. Thar8tas adopted an Amended and Restated
Audit Committee Charter that meets all the applieables of the Nasdaq National Market and the Beesiand Exchange Commission. The
Audit Committee Charter can be found on our welsiteww.biocryst.com. The Audit Committee members‘@ndependent” directors as
defined by the Nasdaqg National Market listing deds in effect as of the date hereof and meet&psdinancial literacy requirements for
audit committee members. The Board of Directorsdeasrmined that Mr. Higgins qualifies as the “awdimmittee financial expert”.

We also have a Compensation Committesisting of Messrs. Higgins, Horovitz and Steer. Tmnpensation Committee is
responsible for the annual review of officer congation and other incentive programs and is autbdria award options under our Stock
Option Plan. The Board has adopted a Compensatom@ttee Charter that meets all the applicablesrofeghe Nasdaqg National Market and
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Cheatebe found on our website at www.biocryst.colre Tompensation Committee
members are “independent” directors as definedhbyNasdaqg National listing standards in effectfabedate hereof.

We have a Corporate Governance and Ndmgm&ommittee comprised of all independent direstoith terms not expiring in the
current year. The current members of the comméteeDirectors Featheringill, Gordon, Higgins, Seiaerg, Sherrill and Spencer. The
Committee nominates persons for election or retiele@s directors. The Board has adopted a Comp@aternance and Nominating
Committee Charter that meets all the applicablesoff the Nasdaqg National Market and the SecusiiesExchange Commission and is
available on our website at www.biocryst.com. Therinittee has established procedures/qualificafionselecting nominees and will
consider nominees recommended in writing, includiragraphical information and personal referenbgsstockholders. All submissions by
shareholders should be sent directly to the Chairofidhe Board, Dr. Bugg at the corporate address.

We have adopted a Code of Business Carfthec*Code”) applicable to all employees, inchugliexecutive officers, and all Board
members. The Code is publicly available on our vtelzg www.biocryst.com. Any waivers of the Coddlwe disclosed through a Form 8-K
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Incorporated by reference from our défiiei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection vifth solicitation of proxies for our 2006
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference from our défiiei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection vifth solicitation of proxies for our 2006
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Incorporated by reference from our déirei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with solicitation of proxies for our 2006
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

Incorporated by reference from our déirei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with solicitation of proxies for our 2006
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference from our défiei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection vifth solicitation of proxies for our 2006
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements

Page in
Form 10-K
The following financial statements appear in Itewf 8his Form 10-K:

Balance Sheets at December 31, 2005 and 43
Statements of Operations for the years ended Dese&ih 2005, 2004 and 20 44
Statements of Stockhold’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2005, 20@4200: 45
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended DeseBih 2005, 2004 and 20 46
Notes to Financial Statemer 47-59
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimgn on Financial Statemer 60
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfingn on Internal Contrc 61

No financial statement schedules are included lsscthe information is either provided in the fin@hstatements or is not required
under the related instructions or is inapplicalvid auch schedules therefore have been omitted.

(b)  Exhibits

Number Description

3.1 Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Registrdancorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to @@mpany’s Form
1C-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 1995 deatgdst 11, 1995

3.2 Bylaws of Registrant as amended December 15, 2006tporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @any’s
Form &K filed December 16, 200!

4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, bybatwieen the Company and American Stock Transférust
Company, as Rights Agent, which includes the Qedti€ of Designation for the Series B Junior Pgoditing
Preferred Stock as Exhibit A and the form of Righestificate as Exhibit B. Incorporated by refezerio Exhibit 4.1
to the Compar’s Form {-A dated June 17, 200

10.1& 1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restatectigé March 8, 2004. Incorporated by referencExbibit 10.1 tc
the Compan’s Form 1i-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2004 dwigdst 10, 2004

10.2# License Agreement dated April 15, 1993 between @bkay Corporation (now merged into Novartis) ahd t
Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi#i0Go the Company’s Form S-1 Registration Statémen
(Registration No. 3-73868).

10.3& Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated byeeféerto Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form S-8 Riegfion

Statement dated June 14, 2002 (Registration N¢-90582).
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10.4

10.5

10.6&

10.7&

10.8

10.9&

10.10*

10.11*

10.12

10.13

10.14&

23

31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP anlAlabama Limited Liability Company and the Retgint
for office/warehouse space. Incorporated by refezdn Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-Q fur second
quarter ending June 30, 2000 dated August 8, 2

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februard0D4, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, @®a&duceus
Private Investments Il, LP, Caduceus Private Imaests Il (QP), LP and UBS Juniper Crossover Funid,G.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form K dated February 17, 200

Employment Agreement dated March 17, 2004 betweeiRegistrant and Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D. Incorpdrhy
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s FormQ @r the first quarter ending March 31, 2004 davay 11,
2004.

Employment Letter Agreement dated February 1, 2#iveen the Registrant and Randall B. Riggs. Irmated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K dated February 7, 200

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februar300B, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Beker Bros.
Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund Il, L.P., 8aRros. Investments I, L.P., Baker Biotech Fuh(z), L.P.,
Baker/Tisch Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech FUhd_LP., Baker Biotech Fund I, L.P., Baker Bioteetnd Il (Z),
L.P. and 14159, L.P. Incorporated by referencexuailiit 4.1 to the Compar's Form K dated February 17, 200
Employment Letter Agreement dated May 4, 2005 betwtbe Registrant and Jonathan M. Nugent. Incotpdray
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form -K dated May 10, 200t

License Agreement dated as of June 27, 2000, bymnmhg Albert Einstein College of Medicine, IndisgdtResearct
Ltd. and BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc., as ametgetie First Amendment Agreement dated as of 26/y2002
and the Second Amendment Agreement dated as of pr2005. (Portions omitted pursuant to reqémst
confidential treatment.) Incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated Biawer 30,
2005.

Development and License Agreement dated as of NbgeB, 2005, by and between BioCryst Pharmacdsitice.
and F.Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd and Hoffmann-La Roale I(Portions omitted pursuant to request for iciemitial
treatment.) Incorporated by reference to Exhibi216 the Compar's Form -K/A dated November 30, 200
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@008, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Kieiner
Perkins Caufield & Byers, Texas Pacific Group Veetuand KPTV, LLC. Incorporated by reference toibiht.1 to
the Compan’s Form K dated December 16, 20(

Nomination and Observer Agreement, dated as of iDbee 16, 2005, by and between BioCryst Pharmacdsfimc.
and Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers. Incorporabgdreference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s ForR 8ated
December 16, 200!

Officer salaries for 2006. Incorporated by refeeetw Exhibit 1.01 to the Company’s Form 8-K datezt®mber 13,
2005.

Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Registerddi®éccounting Firm.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of
2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of
2002.

# Confidential treatment grante
& Management contract
* Confidential treatment requeste
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sect®orl15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984,Registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoedimy authorized on this 9th day of March, 2006.

BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
By: /s/ Charles E. Bug

Charles E. Bugg, Ph.I
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934 this report has been signed byalleving persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities indicated on M&,ck006:

Signature Title(s)

/sl Charles E. Bug Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

(Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D.)

/sl J. Claude Benne President, Chief Operating Officer, Medical Direcamd Directol

(J. Claude Bennett, M.D.)

/sl Michael A. Darwir Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and dunting Officer), Secretary and
Treasurer

(Michael A. Darwin)

/sl Stephen R. Bigg:i Director

(Stephen R. Biggar, M.D., Ph.D.)

s/ William W. Featheringil Director

(William W. Featheringill)

/s/ Carl L. Gordor Director

(Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D.)

/sl John L. Higgin: Director

(John L. Higgins)

/sl Zola P. Horovit: Director

(Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.D.)

/s/ Beth C. Seidenbe! Director

(Beth C. Seidenberg, M.D.)

/sl Joseph H. Sherrill, Director

(Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr.)

/s/ William M. Spence Director

(William M. Spencer, 1l1)

/s/ Randolph C. Ste: Director

(Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.D.)
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Number

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Sequentially
Description Numbered Page

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.1&

10.2#

10.3&

10.4

10.5

10.6&

10.7&

10.8

10.9&

10.10*

Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Registrancorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Compan’s Form 1-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 1995 daigdst 11, 199¢

Bylaws of Registrant as amended December 15, 2666tporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Compan’s Form K filed December 16, 200!

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, byoatwieen the Company and American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company, as Rights Agent, which includesGketificate of Designation for the Series B Junior
Participating Preferred Stock as Exhibit A andfdren of Rights Certificate as Exhibit B. Incorpted by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Comp’s Form A dated June 17, 200

1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restatectigéf March 8, 2004. Incorporated by referencéxbibit
10.1 to the Compar's Form 1i-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2004 daigdst 10, 2004
License Agreement dated April 15, 1993 between @&y Corporation (how merged into Novartis) and t
Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi#i0Go the Company’s Form S-1 Registration Statémen
(Registration No. 3-73868).

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated byeeferto Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form S-8
Registration Statement dated June 14, 2002 (Rati@irNo. 33-90582).

Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP ahlAlabama Limited Liability Company and the
Registrant for office/warehouse space. Incorporbtereference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s FAGRQ
for the second quarter ending June 30, 2000 datgaigt 8, 200!

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februard0D4, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
Caduceus Private Investments I, LP, Caduceus terinaestments Il (QP), LP and UBS Juniper Crossove
Fund, L.L.C. Incorporated by reference to Exhilitllto the Compar's Form K dated February 17, 200
Employment Agreement dated March 17, 2004 betweeRegistrant and Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to thenpany’s Form 10-Q for the first quarter ending Magd,
2004 dated May 11, 200

Employment Letter Agreement dated February 1, 2@0#een the Registrant and Randall B. Riggs.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenPany's Form &K dated February 7, 200

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februard00B, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
Baker Bros. Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund.P., Baker Bros. Investments I, L.P., Bakeotgich
Fund Il (2), L.P., Baker/Tisch Investments, L.Pakir Biotech Fund IlI, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund..p.,
Baker Biotech Fund Il (Z), L.P. and 14159, L.Pcdmporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Comyfma
Form ¢-K dated February 17, 200

Employment Letter Agreement dated May 4, 2005 betwbe Registrant and Jonathan M. Nugent.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form K dated May 10, 200t

License Agreement dated as of June 27, 2000, bymnmhg Albert Einstein College of Medicine, Indigdtr
Research, Ltd. and BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Bscamended by the First Amendment Agreement datefl a
July 26, 2002 and the Second Amendment Agreemeéatides of April 15, 2005. (Portions omitted pursita
request for confidential treatment.) Incorporatgdéference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Fori 8ated
November 30, 200t
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10.11*

10.12

10.13

10.14&

23

31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

Development and License Agreement dated as of Nbge20, 2005, by and between BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and F.Hoffmann-La Roche bt ldoffmann-La Roche Inc. (Portions omitted purgua
to request for confidential treatment.) Incorpodaty reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’snkr&rK/A
dated November 30, 20C

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@008, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers, Texas Pacific God/entures and KPTV, LLC. Incorporated by refeeenc
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Compa’s Form K dated December 16, 20(

Nomination and Observer Agreement, dated as of Dbee 16, 2005, by and between BioCli
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Kleiner Perkins CauieRBlyers. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 42Hhe
Compan’s Form K dated December 16, 20C

Officer salaries for 2006. Incorporated by refeeetw Exhibit 1.01 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated
December 13, 200!

Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Registerddi®éccounting Firm.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursitiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@mnésy Act
of 2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@mnésy Act
of 2002.

# Confidential treatment grante
& Management contract
* Confidential treatment requeste
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EXHIBIT 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference infelewing Registration Statements:

. Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-120333,39484, 333-30751 and 33-95062) pertaining edBioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 1991 Stock Option Plan, aenaled and restated as of March 8, 2(

. Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-90582gpeng to the BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Emgpl Stock Purchase
Plan;

. Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-12808#apeng to the registration of up to $85,000,0@&pectively, of BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. common sto

of our reports dated March 8, 2006 with respethéofinancial statements of BioCryst Pharmacelgidak., BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
management’s assessment of the effectivenesseshaltcontrol over financial reporting, and theeefiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals;.limcluded in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) foetyear ended December 31, 2005.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF
Birmingham, Alabami
March 8, 200¢



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Charles E. Bugg, certify the
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this reg

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiastigularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing preparec

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slassire controls and procedures and presentedsineort our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regissanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an atmeport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimorernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknedsethe design or operation of internal contratiofiancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significéein the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 9, 200 /s/ CHARLES E. BUGC

Charles E. Bug
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

[, Michael A. Darwin, certify that
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this reg

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures designed und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiastigularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing preparec

b. designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finaheorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’slassire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

d. disclosed in this report any change in the regisisanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of anuaimeport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimorernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involvemnagement or other employees who have a significémin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 9, 200 /sl MICHAEL A. DARWIN

Michael A. Darwin
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting
Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of BioCrystaRinaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfte period ending December 31,
2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Chaitle Bugg, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-@xdegf 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934; ani

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/sl Charles E. Bug

Charles E. Bug
Chief Executive Office
March 9, 200¢

This certification is furnished with this Report Borm 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbadsy Act of 2002 and shall not, except
to the extent required by such Act, be deemed filethe Company for purposes of Section 18 of #heuBties Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such certificatiotl wdot be deemed to be incorporated by referentmedny filing under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, excdpetextent that the Company specifically incorpesat by reference.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of BioCrystaRinaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfte period ending December 31,
2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the “Report;)Michael A. Darwin, Chief Financial Officer
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-@xdegf 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934; ani

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/sl Michael A. Darwir

Michael A. Darwin
Chief Financial Officel
March 9, 200¢

This certification is furnished with this Report Borm 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbadsy Act of 2002 and shall not, except
to the extent required by such Act, be deemed filethe Company for purposes of Section 18 of #heuBties Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such certificatiotl wot be deemed to be incorporated by referentmedny filing under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, excdpetextent that the Company specifically incorpesat by reference



